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Declaration refused to include the term ‘Indigenous Peoples’ which is so important for the full 
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Sustainable Medication Take Back for Tulare Basin Watershed (Focus - Tulare County) 

Project Deliverables & Timeline 

Timeline: Project will start on receipt of the grant. This is a two-year project with flexible start date. 

Goal: Get unwanted medications out of homes, streets and waterways by establishing and promoting permanent take-back sites in Tulare County.   
Take-back sites commit to paying for ongoing disposal costs of medications collected in their bins, providing this service to the community free of charge, and 
making this program sustainable. 

Objective Deliverables Schedule
Objective 1:  
Meetings & 
Presentations  

Conduct up to 5 meetings/presentations with key stakeholder groups in Tulare County to invite participation on the project 
and longer-term support of paying the disposal costs and promoting the “Don’t Rush to Flush, Meds in the Bin We All 
Win!” message to protect water quality, to a combination of local government agencies, pharmacies, hospitals and medical 
clinics, law enforcement, water districts and treatment plants, other healthcare and water quality organizations, and other 
relevant parties.   
Outcome 1:  Presentations to key stakeholders resulting in support and participation in the project which includes in-kind 
project promotion and financial commitments to develop a sustainably funded program in Tulare County.

   

30-120 days 
from start of 
project 

Objective 2:  
Take-Back 
Sites 

Establish up to 20 new permanent medication take-back sites in Tulare County supported by outreach materials promoting 
the new and existing collection locations for unwanted and expired medications.  CPSC will recruit new take-back locations 
using a recruitment packet based on the materials developed for the Sacramento/Yolo project. 
Outcome 2:  Establish a minimum of 15 (max 20) new permanent medication take-back sites and promote them heavily in 
the region to ensure they are well utilized.  

120-300 days 
from start of 
project 

Objective 3:  
Promotion & 
Outreach 

Retain Public Relations firm and build on the PR campaign from the Sacramento/Yolo DRTF project to customize for the 
Tulare County market.  Collaborate with key project partners to develop a comprehensive public education program to 
ensure the public and medical community get two messages: 1) Do not flush unused medications down the toilet and 2) 
Bring unused medications to new or existing conveniently located take-back sites in Tulare County.   
Outcome 3: Obtain partnerships with at least one group each from the healthcare, media, and business communities to 
support ongoing education and outreach about the medication take-back system established.  Utilize print ads, billboards, 
radio ads, and other methods to promote the collection sites and educate the public not to flush unwanted mediations.  An 
online presence will allow the public to easily access and share educational and outreach materials through the DRTF 
website (dontrushtoflush.org) and social media pages (www.facebook.com/DontRushToFlush and 
twitter.com/DontRushToFlush).  CPSC will also disseminate information on pharmaceuticals EPR broadly through our 
website www.calpsc.org.

30-670 days 
from start of 
project - The 
PR firm to be 
hired within 
30 days and 
will be 
retained
through 
project term 

Objective 4: 
Surveys and 
Reporting 

Conduct the pre and post program surveys of the healthcare providers and public to determine knowledge and use of 
program. Prepare grant reports to Rose Foundation per contract. 

Ongoing 
ending at end 
of grant term 



Employee Wages Hours Hourly Rate
Executive Director 27             130          3,510$         
Assistant Director 8               100          800$            
Program Manager 75             85            6,375$         
Special Projects Manager II 8               80            640$            
Special Projects Manager I 8               60            480$            
Special Project Coordinator 39             45            1,755$         
Senior Associate 12             35            420$            
Associate 118           30            3,540$         
Intern 20             18            360$            
Total Employee Hours/Wages 315 17,880$       

Contract Services Hours Hourly Rate
Accounting Consultant 40             70            2,800$         
Total Contract Services 2,800$         

Expenses
Media Buys & Printing to Promote Med Take-Back Sites 32,500.00$  
Contract Services Public Relations Consultant $5,000
Travel $1,820
Bins $20,000
Total Expenses 39,320.00$  

Total Budget Requested for CPSC* 60,000.00$  

Consolidated Waste Management Authority Project Support
Staff Time $12,000
Total Project Budget With In-Kind $92,000.00

California Product Stewardship Council
Rose Foundation Grant Proposal Budget - Sustainable Medication Take-Back Tulare Basin

*Hours and materials budget line items are for planning purposes only and may be adjusted, 
within the not-to-exceed amount, throughout the grant period by mutual consent of ROse 

Foundation Grant Manager and California Product Stewardship Council in order to complete 
the tasks specified in the Scope of Work.
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Buckley and Endow LLP
Certified Public Accountants

9706 Fair Oaks Boulevard, Suite 150
Fair Oaks, California 95628
(916) 966-0420 • (916) 966-0566 FAX

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S COMPILATION REPORT

To the Board of Directors
California Product Stewardship Council
Sacramento, California

We have compiled the accompanying statement of financial position of California Product 
Stewardship Council as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements of activities, and cash 
flows for the years then ended. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial 
statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or provide any assurance about whether the 
financial statements are in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for 
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for 
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 
The objective of a compilation is to assist management in presenting financial information in the 
form of financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are 
no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements.

Buckley and Endow LLP
August 19, 2014
Fair Oaks, California



2014 2013
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash 53,738$ 43,498$
Receivables 20,186 38,935
Prepaid expenses and deposits 6,921 4,422

Total 80,845$ 86,855$

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 9,535$ 971$
Accrued expenses 32,185 18,303
Deferred revenue 7,000 -

Total liabilities 48,720 19,274

NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted
General operating (23,325) 38,331
Designated funds 55,450 29,250

Total net assets 32,125 67,581

80,845$ 86,855$

2

CALIFORNIA PRODUCT STEWARDSHIP COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

See accompanying notes and independent
accountant's compilation report



2014 2013
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:
REVENUES:

Grant income 22,717$   22,283$
Contract service income 72,816 33,082
Associate fees 268,188 206,850
Partner fees 54,100 50,250
Other fees and contributions 55,022 54,093
Interest income 176 234

Total revenues 473,019 366,792
EXPENDITURES:

Wages 280,447 209,509
Employee benefits 47,008 33,999
Contract services 91,560 46,801
Accounting 13,610 12,700
Legal 3,577 2,240
Travel 8,329 7,845
Conferences and meetings 2,788 17,850
Outreach expenses 19,171 8,439
Insurance 5,335 4,983
Office rent 17,806 6,214
Information technology 4,609 2,820
Office expenses and other costs 14,235 7,405

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 508,475 360,805

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (35,456) 5,987

NET ASSETS - Beginning of year 67,581 61,594

NET ASSETS - End of year 32,125$   67,581$

3

CALIFORNIA PRODUCT STEWARDSHIP COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

See accompanying notes and independent
accountant's compilation report



2014 2013
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets (35,456)$ 5,987$
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Receivables 18,749 (26,293)
Prepaid expenses and deposits (2,499) (1,231)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable 8,564 (6,953)
Accrued expenses 13,882 4,159
Deferred revenue 7,000 (5,000)

NET CASH (USED) PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 10,240 (29,331)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - -

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH 10,240 (29,331)

CASH - Beginning of year 43,498 72,829

CASH - End of year 53,738$ 43,498$

accountant's compilation report
4

CALIFORNIA PRODUCT STEWARDSHIP COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

See accompanying notes and independent



CALIFORNIA PRODUCT STEWARDSHIP COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1 – NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Nature of activities:
California Product Stewardship Council was incorporated in June 2007 as a (IRC 501 c(3)) non-
profit public benefit corporation. California Product Stewardship Council’s specific purposes are 
to shift California’s product waste management system from one focused on government funded 
and ratepayer financed waste diversion to one that relies on producer responsibility in order to 
reduce public costs and drive improvements in product design that promote environmental 
sustainability.

Statement of cash flows:
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid debt 
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash.  The organization does 
not have any cash equivalents.

Use of estimates:
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements.  Those 
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported revenues and expenses.  Actual
results could differ from these estimates.

Net assets and contributions:
Generally accepted accounting principles require that the Organization present information 
regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets:  unrestricted 
net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. The
Organization reports contributions as restricted if they are received with donor stipulations that 
limit the use of the donated asset. When a purpose/use restriction is accomplished, then 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.  When restrictions on contributions 
are satisfied in the same year as the receipt of the contribution, the Organization reports both the 
contribution revenue and the related expense in unrestricted net assets. The Organization does not 
have any temporarily or permanently restricted net assets.

Donated services and materials:
The Organization records the donation of materials and services when an objective basis to 
measure the value of those donations, and when the materials or services would be purchased if 
they were not donated.

Date of management’s review:
Management has evaluated subsequent events through August 19, 2014, the date on which 
the financial statements were available to be issued.

See independent accountant’s compilation report
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CALIFORNIA PRODUCT STEWARDSHIP COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 2 - COMMITMENTS:

The organization does not have any long term lease commitments.

NOTE 3 - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES:

Functional expenses are as follows:                                                          2014 2013
Program services $404,913  $286,881
Management and general  93,131  63,715
Fundraising   10,431   10,209

Total expenditures  $508,475 $360,805

See independent accountant’s compilation report
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Disposal program for medical needles in the works 
- Porterville Recorder: Home 

Disposal program for medical needles in the 
works 
By KELLI BALLARD | Posted: Wednesday, August 28, 2013 12:00 am 

Several years ago, the state Legislature mandated that it is illegal to dispose of needles, 
commonly known as “sharps,” in landfills, 
however, there are no laws to regulate it. It is 
illegal to throw them in the trash or down 
commodes, leaving many residents 
wondering what to do with their used sharps. 

That is exactly the issue Consolidated Waste 
Management Authority, a committee of 
cities working together to handle waste 
issues, has been working on for over three 
years.

Currently, those who have a medical use for 
needles, such as those needed for diabetes or 
pet supplies, need to dull used needles, place 
them in an approved container and pay a 
licensed handler to dispose of them. Many 

people have containers full of used sharps because they have nowhere to dispose of them. 
Or worse, there are some who illegally — and dangerously — dispose of sharps in trash 
bins, riverbeds, toilets or by other methods to dispose of them. 

“They’re in the trash, and they’re dangerous,” said Porterville Vice Mayor Pete 
McCracken. 

With the proposed program by CWMA, disposing of sharps will be much easier and 
economical. 

Currently, there aren’t many places to dispose of sharps, and the few places that do, only 
accept a minimum amount of them. Fortunately, CWMA has developed a kiosk design 



which will accept sharps’ containers and hold them until a licensed handler can pick them 
up.

“The ideal situation is that these are placed near the pharmacy counter,” said McCracken. 
“This is set up for pharmacies. It is for companies who sell sharps such as pharmacies 
and pet stores; they need to provide disposal.” 

Pharmacies, however, may not be too accepting of the idea, as it would require them to 
hire a licensed hauler for the kiosk. 

CWMA has been working on this hurdle, too. CWMA administrator Anne Magana said 
they were working on contracts with haulers that would be the least expensive for the 
pharmacies and other companies that sell sharps. 

A small generator, according to Magana, is a store that collects 20 pounds or less of 
sharps each month. With the contract they are working on, a small generator store will 
only pay about $100 a year for the service, while a larger store would pay about $1,200 a 
year.

Pharmacies are not required to use the haulers CWMA is working with; they can choose 
their own or use the one they are currently contracted with — if they have one. 

Larger pharmacies usually “already have a handler because they are already providing 
shots, such as flu and shingles shots,” said Magana. 

The idea is to have the kiosks in pharmacies near their counters and in pet stores and 
other areas that sell or deal with sharps. People would need to purchase the containers, 
which could be sold at the stores but they would need proper disposal. This is also cost 
effective for individuals, according to Magana, as it costs approximately $45 to ship 
containers to a disposal site. This fee would be eliminated with the kiosk. 

“So far, CWMA would cover the cost for the kiosk and do community outreach,” 
McCracken said. 

In an area where ag and livestock are so important, this program would also be very 
beneficial to farmers and ranchers who use sharps for their livestock. A kiosk could be set 
up on a ranch, at a fair event or other situations where the sharps can be safely and 
properly disposed. 

“We recommend people switching from the syringe to the pin needle,” said Magana. “It 
is cost effective and saves space.” 



Companies that will have the kiosks will need to call for a licensed hauler to pick up the 
full kiosk. Smaller companies, those with less than 20 pounds of sharps a month, will 
need to call for a pick up within 30 days when the kiosk is three-quarters full. Larger 
companies will need to call for pick up within seven days after the kiosk is three-quarters 
full. 

CWMA is working hard to create a program to help control and maintain proper disposal 
of sharps. Part of the problem is funding, and the other hurdle is convincing pharmacies 
and other sharps suppliers of the need. 

Pharmacies may be reluctant to have a kiosk in their store; however, as Magana stated, 
customers going into the stores to drop off their sharps containers may also purchase 
other items they wouldn’t otherwise purchase had they not gone in to dispose of their 
containers. In other words, it will increase sales. 

“This is another one of those state-mandated programs that costs, but there are no funds 
to do it,” McCracken said. 

“The responsibility needs to be on the manufacturer,” said Magana. “If you provide it, 
you need to be responsible for disposal. The city cannot pay for unfunded mandates.” 

The program will be brought before the City Council at a later date, with the hope of 
being able to implement it by the first quarter next year. 

Contact Kelli Ballard at 784-5000, Ext. 1047, or kballard@portervillerecorder.com. 
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Dear Bill,

Welcome to this week's issue of the California Pharmacists 
Association's CEO Message.

At the Capitol and Around the Profession
Sharp HealthCare Pulls Out of ACO Program
On Tuesday, San Diego-based Sharp HealthCare announced 
that it has dropped out of the Pioneer Accountable Care 
Organization program, making it the 10th ACO to do so. Read
more...

FDA Approves New HIV Drug
ViiV Healthcare announced that the US Food and Drug 
Administration (FDA) has approved Triumeq tablets for the 
treatment of HIV-1 infection. Read more...

Gains from Medicare Part D are Waning
Although Medicare Part D in its first few years had a positive 
effect on beneficiaries, such as lowering their out-of-pocket 
prescription drug costs, those gains have reversed in recent 
years, according to a recent study published in Health Affairs. 
Read more...
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About CPhA

Since its establishment in 
1869, the California 
Pharmacists Association 
continues as the largest 
state association in the 
nation representing 
pharmacists. CPhA's 
membership covers the 
entire spectrum of 
pharmacy practice settings 
and includes student 
pharmacists and pharmacy 
technicians. The 
Association's vision is 
echoed by all CPhA 
members: A unified 
pharmacy profession, 
recognized as preeminent 
in patient care. 
  

Contact Information:

of NIAM, Sunday, August 24 through Saturday, August 30. 
Learn more with this quick and easy guide! 
  
Nominate a Colleague for National Awards
The APhA Awards and Honors Program is the profession's most 
comprehensive recognition program. Help identify the students, 
practitioners, scientists, and organizations most deserving of 
recognition at the 2015 APhA Annual Meeting & Exposition in 
San Diego, California. The deadline for nominations is 
September 1. Click here for information.
  
Medication Collection Bins Available for Free

Pharmacists - the California Product Stewardship Council 
(CPSC) has FREE medication collection bins ($1,000 value) for 
interested parties in the County of Santa Clara, Contra Costa 
County and Placer County.  Bin hosts will receive free promotion 
of their service to the community. Please contact the CPSC at 
(916) 706-3420.   

  
Become a Peer Reviewer for California Pharmacist
CPhA is excited to announce that we have implemented a new 
editorial and peer review management system, 
PeerTrack/Editorial Manager, which will make submitting and 
peer reviewing articles for California Pharmacist more 
streamlined and efficient. We need peer reviewers in all areas of 
pharmacy. Share your expertise and become a peer reviewer 
today by completing the short online profile, here. Your 
assistance helps make the California Pharmacist journal a useful 
resource tool for advancing the professional practice of 
pharmacy. 

CPhA in the News
To view all press releases and news articles featuring 
CPhA, click here.

Membership Matters

Call for New Business
Policy Committees will meet in early December to discuss and 
recommend CPhA policies to the House of Delegates. If you 
have new policy ideas, complete the New Business Form here.
Please submit your form no later than October 31 to be 
reviewed by the Policy Committee. If you have any questions, 
you may contact Jamie Carota at jcarota@cpha.com or at (916) 
779-4511.  
  
Call for CE Presentations at Exchange





Don’t Rush to Flush Billboards
Sacramento & Yolo County 
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                                 “WHERE CHILDREN COME FIRST”

October 21, 2014

Timmarie Hamill, Executive Director
CA Urban Streams Alliance-The Stream Team
1282 Filbert Ave.
Chico, CA 95926
Subject: Letter of Support, Rose Foundation Central Valley 

Disadvantaged Community Water Quality Grants Program

Dear Ms. Hamill,

On behalf of Four Winds School, a public charter school administered by the 
Butte County Office of Education, I support the CA Urban Streams Alliance-
The Stream Team (The Stream Team) and its application for funding through 
the Rose Foundation’s Central Valley Disadvantaged Community Water 
Quality Grants Program (Rose Foundation Grant Program).  We support The 
Stream Team’s efforts to strengthen locally-led conservation partnerships and 
effective pooling of available technical and financial resources to achieve 
greater project outcomes.

As a regional leader in natural resource protection efforts, I am aware of how 
The Stream Team has significantly improved locally-led dialogue and 
coordination toward greater conservation of natural resources in the North 
State. The Stream Team provides opportunities for citizens, schools and 
community organizations to participate in restoring stream-side habitats, 
monitoring water quality and implementing Low Impact Development (LID) 
strategies that reduce water quality impacts associated with stormwater 
runoff.

100% of the students at Four Winds School are identified as socio-
economically disadvantaged. I am excited to be a part of this project that will 
focus its efforts to provide highly engaging, real-life learning opportunities 
specifically designed to benefit Disadvantaged Communities (DACs) by: 
establishing a “Science Ambassador” program in DAC schools; linking 
educational outreach campaigns with municipal stormwater and urban 
greening management plans that address issues within DAC neighborhoods 
and constructing LID demonstration sites within DAC neighborhoods and 
utilize school sites as educational tools.

The mission of Four Winds School is to support both the personal and 
academic development of students by providing an engaging curriculum that 
will equip students with the skills, knowledge and attributes to become self-
motivated, competent, lifelong learners. With the new California Common 
Core State Standards Four Winds School is committed to providing learning 
opportunities that embed the skills and understandings students are expected 
to demonstrate inside the classroom as well as outside the classroom and/or 
in the workplace. The Stream Team project is a perfect match with the 
educational program at Four Winds School, and OEFA is a valued 
educational partner that will provide a framework for making connections to
schools within DAC neighborhoods which we believe is vital to our collective 
mission of conserving natural resources for future generations.

If more information is required, please contact me at (530) 879-7411. 

Tim Taylor
Superintendent
ttaylor@bcoe.org

Michelle 
Zevely
Assistant 

Superintendent
mzevely@coe.org

Terri Tozier
Principal

ttozier@bcoe.org

Board of Education

Amy Christianson
Ryne Johnson

Jeannine MacKay
Brenda J. McLaughlin

Roger Steel
Betty Vassar
Mike Walsh

1859 Bird Street
Oroville, CA  95965

(530) 532-5761
Fax (530) 532-5762
http://www.bcoe.org

An Equal Opportunity 
Employer



Sincerely,

Terri Tozier, Principal
Four Winds School









Big Chico Creek
Water Watch

Join us to measure in-stream conditions and other
factors useful in determining the health of Big

Chico Creek. Learn how healthy streams help create
a healthy climate. For more info, contact

thamill@sunset.net or 342-6620.

5-Mile Picnic Area Parking Lot
Saturday Oct. 9th @ 9AM

http://www.thestreamteam.org/



Left to right: Inspire High School students Courtney Olson,
Ashley Raymond and Auleve Mariposa-Miller sort aquatic
insect samples and separate out mayflies, stone flies and caddis
flies, which are the organisms typically present in clean,
healthy creeks.
PHOTO BY MARY GOVAN

The Stream Team will host the ninth annual water quality
training event from 1-3 p.m. on Saturday, April 21, at the
Chico Creek Nature Center. For more info, visit
thestreamteam.org or call 342-6620.
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Inspired by nature
Charter high schoolers team up for streams

By Shannon Rooney

This article was published on 04.19.12.

It was cold, windy and wet on the morning of April 10, but that didn’t faze about 80
Inspire High School students who braved the weather to learn first-hand about stream
health and water quality.

Bundled in warm jackets, the students made the outdoors their classroom as they
worked near the Bidwell Bowl Amphitheater along Big Chico Creek on the Chico
State campus. Cycling in groups through six stations, they studied invasive-plant
species, learned about urban runoff, calculated stream flow, inspected aquatic insects,
and encountered other components of stream-health measurement and evaluation.

The event was part of a larger unit of study provided to Inspire students by the
California Urban Streams Alliance–The Stream Team, which facilitates a Youth
Stream Team program in local schools. The Stream Team was established in 2004 by
Chico biologist Timmarie Hamill to offer watershed and urban-pollution-prevention
education to complement local and regional watershed management strategies for
achieving natural resource goals.

The Stream Team works from the premise that, “If people are the problem, then they
must certainly be part of the solution,” Hamill said. It uses “a multi-pronged
approach” that includes engaging community members in citizen-monitoring efforts,
compiling and analyzing collected water-quality data, and providing information and
education to promote understanding and community action related to watershed
health.

Before the event at the creek, Hamill had visited and shared information with
students in teacher Malina Olson’s three Integrated Science classes at Inspire, a
charter school housed on the Chico High School campus. Olson said her students
“really responded to it [the Youth Stream Team event] and that she’s realized that
“water and water quality have become a natural thread for this class.” She’s eager, she
said, to expand the Youth Stream Team at her school next year.

At one of the stations, 15-year-old freshman Tesla Coyl, said it was interesting to
learn how stream health and water quality is affected by humans. She also liked
learning how invasive-plant and -animal species can harm the ecosystem.

Along with the several other Stream Team volunteering professionals, aquatic
entomologist Dan Pickard—who runs the California Department of Fish and Game
Bio-Assessment Lab—assisted students in their learning. Facilitating the invertebrate
station, which included water-filled trays of aquatic insects, he told students the
mayflies, stone flies, and caddis flies in a stream are indicators of the stream’s health
—or lack of it. Larval aquatic insects spend most of their life cycle in the creek and
therefore can “tell” humans a lot about the quality of the water and stream habitat.

Holding up a large stone fly, he explained how she’d crawled out of her exoskeleton,
unfurled her wings, and flown away—to find a mate. “The adult lives only a couple
weeks, then dies,” he said. Noting the The Stream Team is local, he said it’s “really
important to see what is happening with our local water.”

Freshman Austin Bower, 14, said his favorite station was Pickard’s, which he
described as “hands on.” He explained he’s visually impaired and can usually “hardly
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tell a fly from a bee.” At Pickard’s station, however, he experienced a large stone fly
(a few inches long) crawling up his arm. “It was very entertaining,” he said, “and it
was amazing how big it was.”

The Stream Team is seeking new funding sources so it can continue its important
work, including local support for Youth Stream Team efforts. To date, Hamill said, it
has facilitated more than 30,000 hours of community service, thanks to the dedication
of thousands of community volunteers.
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Stream Team volunteer Mercedes Marin tests water along Big
Chico Creek.
PHOTO COURTESY OF TIMMARIE HAMILL
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Water watchdogs
Local group launches its 11th year of creek monitoring

By Tom Gascoyne
tomg@newsreview.com

This article was published on 05.08.14.

This Saturday (May 10), the local chapter of the California Urban Streams Alliance
will launch its 11th year of operation. The Stream Team, as they’re known, gathers
environmental data from the Big Chico Creek watershed and then shares that
information with the State Water Board to track long-term trends and create water
policy.

Member Timmarie Hamill is a local biologist and enthusiastic supporter of the
project. She says with a decade under their belts, the information they gather is now
beginning to reflect long-term cumulative effects of urban land-use practices on the

health of Big Chico Creek.

“We’ve been around since 2004 and even a little earlier than that getting things ready
and starting out small,” she said. “This is our 11th consecutive year of monitoring
water on Big Chico Creek at 10 sites, from the upper watershed down to the mouth.”

That includes Butte Meadows, through the Forest Ranch area and then Upper, Middle
and Lower Bidwell Park, continuing through the city and along Rose Avenue below
the urban area, beyond which, on its way to the Sacramento River, the creek is
affected by the inflows of Mud and Rock creeks as well as agriculture.

She said they monitor overall water quality and use equipment that allows them to
document the pH levels, conductivity, turbidity (a measure of water clarity),
temperature and oxygen levels.

“Then we also do bio-assessment, which means taking a look at the aquatic diversity
of the juvenile insect nymphs that live in the creeks,” she said. “If they are there for
two or three years and known to be sensitive to pollution, then you can assume the
creek is in pretty good shape. But if you just have black flies and roundworms, you’d
be concerned.”

On Friday (May 9), the team will work with students from Inspire High School to
monitor trash in the creek.

“We’ve worked periodically with most of the schools in town,” Hamill said,
“depending on the task we are trying to achieve that year and whether or not we have
a willing teacher who can get their kids off campus and do the work. We try to
modify what we are doing for students in order to get them involved and allow them
to apply what they are doing in their classroom to a real-life situation.”

She said the students from Inspire signed up as volunteers at the recent Endangered
Species Faire. They will meet at the amphitheater located along the creek on the
Chico State campus.

“This is a survey that the State Water Board uses,” Hamill said. “It’s called a rapid
trash assessment and is a way of setting a baseline and then trying to get people
connected to how much trash is in the creek. And then we do outreach and education
and target certain types of trash or areas that are really trashed. Then we have to be
able to document that we made a difference and involved the students.”

The goal in the effort is two-pronged: To collect real data that is useful to resource
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The goal in the effort is two pronged: To collect real data that is useful to resource
managers locally, regionally and statewide and to involve the students so they become
better engaged and informed about what they can do to make a difference.

“It’s amazing that it really works,” Hamill said. “After all these years, holy moly, people keep showing up.”

Volunteers are asked to help with the monitoring events that begin Saturday and run through October on the second Saturday of the month. Those
interested meet at the Five-Mile picnic area parking lot at 9 a.m. More information is available at www.thestreamteam.org.

“We really need money but everybody needs money so we work regardless,” Hamill said. Though they’ve received $600,000 in grants over the years,
most of it came early on. “We haven’t ever reached out locally for any funding or done any fundraising really. We’re too shy. But we have to start
doing that. We like to say we’ve done a lot of good work, but we haven’t done a very good job of hollering about what we do.”
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- FISHBIO: Fisheries research, monitoring, and conservation - http://fishbio.com -

Local Stewards: The Stream Team
Posted on April 22, 2013 in Miscellaneous

In celebration of Earth Day today, FISHBIO wanted to highlight grassroots environmental projects
happening in our own backyard. We did not need to look far: The Stream Team actively promotes
environmental awareness and volunteerism in Chico, California, by engaging the local community in
watershed stewardship and monitoring. The Stream Team meets on the second Saturday of each
month and sends out local volunteers to conduct watershed assessments in Big Chico Creek. The
volunteers who participate in this monthly Big Chico Creek Watershed Citizen Monitoring Program
range from university students to long-time community activists, making for a lively, diverse, and
enthusiastic group. Splashing through the cool creek water, taking measurements with electronic
devices, spotting the occasional fish, and spending time with family and friends in the warm spring
weather are all part of the experience in the group’s efforts to help their neighborhood watershed.

Creek systems like Big Chico Creek are important to the overall function and health of river
ecosystems and surrounding communities because they provide safe drinking water, habitat for
endangered fish (such as salmon), and flood control. The Stream Team monitors a large portion of
the 46-mile-long Big Chico Creek, from its confluence with the Sacramento River to its upper
reaches in the Sierra Nevada foothills. Volunteers measure current velocity, water temperature,
turbidity, pH, and dissolved oxygen along the creek using everything from basic yellow ribbon tape
measures to small portable chemistry test kits. The group has devoted more than 20,000 hours of
community service, and has collected almost a decade’s worth of data on the water quality of the
Creek. This cumulative data has helped provide useful baseline information and track long-term
trends in the watershed’s condition.
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The Stream Team has discovered that urban areas such as Chico are impacting the ecological health
of Big Chico Creek.  The creek’s lower stretch (from Chico to the Sacramento River) shows declining
water quality and a lower abundance of aquatic life, such as fish and insects. In addition to the
group’s regular monitoring activities, Timmarie Hamill, a member of The Stream Team’s board of
directors, hopes to begin conducting snorkel and redd count surveys of salmon in the near
future. She encourages interested individuals to volunteer their time or donate to keep the non-
profit organization active. The Stream Team has successfully brought the local community together
to promote stewardship of the Big Chico Creek watershed and the local environment. Hopefully,
similar citizen monitoring efforts around the world can help local governments preserve and protect
water quality and aquatic life for decades to come. For more information, please contact The Stream
Team at (530) 342-6620 or visit their website at www.thestreamteam.org.

Article printed from FISHBIO: Fisheries research, monitoring, and conservation: http://fishbio.com

URL to article: http://fishbio.com/miscellaneous/local-stewards-the-stream-team

Copyright © 2013 FISHBIO. All rights reserved.
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Volunteer Stream Team tests Big
Chico Creek today
By LARRY MITCHELL-Staff Writer

POSTED:   05/12/2012 12:23:22 AM PDT

CHICO — Volunteers from a group called The Stream Team will test the quality of the water in Big
Chico Creek this morning.
They'll meet at 9 a.m. in the parking lot at Five-Mile Dam Recreation Area off Centennial Avenue.
The work usually takes two or three hours.

Anyone who wants to help out is welcome. Children should be accompanied by adults, said
Timmarie Hamill, who coordinates the monitoring.

She is chairwoman of a nonprofit organization, The California Urban Streams Alliance — The
Stream Team.

The group began monitoring the stream water in 2004. At that time it was more informal and
called itself simply The Stream Team. Recently it became a nonprofit corporation and took the
longer title.

"We have 10 monitoring sites along Big Chico Creek," Hamill said in a phone interview Friday.
They range from far up Highway 32 to near the spot where the stream flows into the Sacramento
River.

The volunteers, who have been trained to do the work, take water samples and analyze them for
pollutants. They also measure how much water is flowing in the creek.

The data is sent to the state Water Resources Control Board. Around the state, there are more than
200 "citizen monitoring programs" like the one in Chico, Hamill said.

She said The Stream Team does its monitoring on the second Saturday of each month. Usually 20
to 30 volunteers take part.

Besides being sent to the state, the data is posted on the group's website:www.thestreamteam.org.

In another activity, Hamill said her group works with local schools to educate children about
keeping creek water clean.

"We have them come out and do monitoring at the sites," she said. "They learn about water
chemistry and storm drains and start thinking about how what we do in our yards affects the
creek."

For more information about The Stream Team, call 342-6620.

Staff writer Larry Mitchell can be reached at 896-7759 or lmitchell@chicoer.com, or followed on
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October 22, 2014 

Mr. Tim Little 
Rose Foundation for Communities and the Environment 
1970 Broadway #600  
Oakland, CA 94612 

Dear Mr. Little, 

On behalf of the Allensworth Progressive Association (APA), I am writing in support of the 
grant application submitted by Center on Race, Poverty & Environment’s (CRPE) for the Central 
Valley Disadvantaged Community Water Quality Grants Program. The APA is the longest 
running non-profit in Allensworth, established in 1908 by town-founder Colonel Allen 
Allensworth.  Its primary purpose works to develop and provide community and economic 
development, social, cultural and recreation programs and services to improve the quality of life
of Allensworth residents.  

CRPE has been an asset to the people of Allensworth, helping to organize the community, 
creating unity among the residents, and protecting our environmental health. Our partnership 
with them began in 2000 when CRPE fought to keep out a mega-dairy that would have housed 
16,000 cows just one mile from the community and Allensworth State Historic Park.  Most 
recently, CRPE was instrumental in helping to secure a grant for $495,000 from the Strategic 
Growth Council to work with neighboring water districts in Alpaugh and Angiola to reduce the 
arsenic in the town’s water supply. 

The proposed project would benefit our disadvantaged community by ensuring that residents are 
involved in decision making process with the Strategic Growth Council’s grant implementation.  
CRPE is a trusted ally in the community and their involvement in this process is critical.  CRPE 
has a proven track record of serving our community, going above and beyond to address many of 
the community’s environmental, economic, and infrastructure issues.  The project would also 
provide residents with much needed trainings on the water quality issues we face including 
drought.  APA is involved in community engagement and serves on the steering committee for 
this project.  APA will continue its efforts working with CRPE, Tulare County, Self Help 
Enterprises and other partners towards ensuring Allensworth has quality water for its residents.  

The Allensworth Progressive Association fully supports any funding that can support the efforts 
of CRPE and that will help our community implement the Strategic Growth Council Grant.  As 
we often say, Allensworth is a “community that refuses to die,” but we want to do more than 
survive. We want to thrive. 

Sincerely, 

Denise Kadara, President 
Allensworth Progressive Association  
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Rural towns devise unique plan to solve
water problems
May 14, 2012 | Bernice Yeung, California Watch

For a good part of its rich history, residents of unincorporated
Allensworth, the first African American colony west of the Mississippi,
have gone without a reliable supply of safe drinking water.

This is still the case today, where the Tulare County community’s
wells – which provide water to the neighboring Colonel Allensworth
State Historical Park [2] that commemorates the area’s legacy – exceed
federal levels for arsenic. 

Arsenic is naturally occurring in the area, and consumption of the semi-
metal can cause nausea and skin discoloration. It has also been
associated with various cancers.

Residents of Allensworth and neighboring Alpaugh – both rural,
unincorporated communities in Tulare County whose water has
elevated arsenic levels – have advanced a novel proposal to resolve
the water issues in their communities. Under the plan, the Allensworth
and Alpaugh Community Services Districts would combine with the
Angiola Water District, which sells water for irrigation, to deliver
drinking water to residents. Late last week, Allensworth and Alpaugh’s

proposal received nearly $420,000 in state grants [PDF] [3] to research its feasibility.

Safe drinking water is a "necessity for healthy living and economic growth and opportunity for the community,” Denise Kadara, president
of the Allensworth Progressive Association, said at a recent meeting of the Strategic Growth Council, a cabinet-level committee
that coordinates activities related to issues such as water quality and public health among five state agencies. “Rural communities like
Allensworth face huge barriers to clean drinking water and we need innovative solutions to overcome these barriers.”

Consolidation of water districts – there are more than 8,000 public systems in California – has become increasingly appealing to rural
communities. “It’s become harder and harder for a very small water system to provide safe water and to keep the rates affordable,” said
Laurel Firestone, the co-executive director of the Community Water Center in Visalia. “There’s an overall trend of water systems looking
for collaborative solutions to help cut costs.”

The Allensworth-Alpaugh proposal is unique because it involves a consolidation between remote rural community water districts and an
irrigation water district. The arrangement could serve as a model for other rural communities, water policy experts say.

“A lot of dispersed communities face similar challenges, and what is learned here could be pretty influential in the rural West,” said Tony
Rossmann, an attorney who has handled some of the state’s most significant water cases.

The proposal had the support of the Tulare County Board of Supervisors, which submitted the application to the state Strategic Growth
Council. “We know that in Tulare County, we have clean water issues in our unincorporated communities,” said Allen Ishida, a county
supervisor. “We are not going to be able to solve these issues without consolidation because it’s too expensive.” 

Ishida said the funding for the feasibility study is a step toward “finally, after all these years, getting acceptable and potable clean water”
to unincorporated communities “so that residents can enjoy the health benefits and lessen the financial burden of having to buy bottled
water.”

According to surveys conducted by advocacy organizations like California Rural Legal Assistance, residents of low-income,
unincorporated communities spend up to 10 percent of their income on water.

California law states that residents have a “right to pure and safe drinking water,” but while the state Department of Public Health is
charged with monitoring public water systems, there are few enforcement mechanisms, said Camille Pannu of the Center on Race,
Poverty & the Environment, who helped draft the Allensworth-Alpaugh proposal.

“The gap between rights on the books and rights on the ground is particularly stark in the (Central) Valley,” Pannu wrote in a recent
issue [4] of the California Law Review.

The Allensworth-Alpaugh proposal also included an additional $450,000 funds to study the extension of sewer service from the city of



Tulare to the unincorporated community of Matheny Tract.

As California Watch has previously reported [5], Matheny Tract, on the outskirts of Tulare, is located just a few miles – and downwind –
 from the municipal wastewater treatment plant, but residents currently can’t connect to it. Residents rely instead on aging septic tanks.

A memorandum of understanding is already in place between the city and county to explore a wastewater connection to Matheny Tract,
but feasibility studies are a crucial step toward infrastructure improvements for low-income unincorporated communities, advocates
said.

A common obstacle to construction is "not getting through the planning phase,” often because there's a lack of funding, said Phoebe
Seaton of California Rural Legal Assistance.

Tulare County Supervisor Pete Vander Poel added that the studies for the Allensworth-Alpaugh and Matheny Tract projects "can be
used to leverage additional funds for construction." He said that state and federal funding sources typically require feasibility studies
and preliminary engineering work to be completed before projects will be considered for future funding.

A separate $383,853 proposal to draft a planning document for unincorporated and disadvantaged communities in Tulare County along
the Highway 99 corridor was also approved by the Strategic Growth Council.

Numerous Central Valley communities face similar conditions with water quality, access and delivery. A report [6] by the environmental
research organization Pacific Institute found that between 2005 and 2008, about 1.3 million San Joaquin Valley residents drank water
with unhealthy levels of nitrates, which can lead to severe illness and even death among infants.

According to Oakland think tank PolicyLink, an estimated 1.8 million Californians live in low-income, unincorporated communities like
Allensworth and Alpaugh, and many lack potable drinking water or other basic infrastructure. In the Tulare Lake Basin area, there are at
least 370 of these communities.

© 2014 California Watch

Original URL: http://californiawatch.org/dailyreport/rural-towns-devise-unique-plan-solve-water-problems-16180

Links:
[1] http://www.flickr.com/photos/wwworks/4120359367/
[2] http://www.parks.ca.gov/?page_id=583
[3] http://www.sgc.ca.gov/meetings/20120510/PlanningGrantsRound2-corrected.pdf
[4] http://www.californialawreview.org/articles/drinking-water-and-exclusion-a-case-study-from-california-s-central-
valley
[5] http://californiawatch.org/health-and-welfare/neglected-decades-unincorporated-communities-lack-basic-public-
services-15635
[6] http://www.pacinst.org/reports/nitrate_contamination/



Delano residents frustrated over nitrates in water | KGET TV 17

http://www2.kerngoldenempire.com/mostpopular/story/Delano-residents-frustrated-over-nitrates-in-water/WRi5hVcJgU61YfnX77ZTZQ.cspx[10/29/2014 4:24:35 PM]

Video

Delano residents say they're concerned about
tap water
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Delano residents frustrated over nitrates in water

DELANO, CA -- Delano residents say they're upset over unsafe tap water. They say it's contaminated with nitrates and
arsenic. 

Some residents say the water is so bad, they buy bottled water to wash their food.

City officials have applied for a $5 million federal grant to help remove the high levels of nitrates.

"It's scary to know that we are bathing, eating, cooking and drinking water that has arsenic and nitrates that cause many,
many illnesses, said Valerie Gorospe, Center on Race, Poverty & Environment.

The center says it's a problem that has a huge impact on Delano.

"A lot of the families can't afford to purchase water, so they're forced to drink the tap water," said Gorospe.

"People should feel ok, not afraid of to fill up a glass of water from the tap. People should not be fearful that they're going to
get sick. However, that is a reality, people are not using their tap water for cooking or drinking," Susana, De Anda, Community
Water Center, Central Valley.

Mario Ancheta, who moved to Delano two years ago, uses purified water to wash his food. 

"I'm using purified water to clean, rinse my vegetables and fruits and even for cooking and drinking it. There is something
wrong with the tap water, they need to do something about it," said Ancheta. 

The City says it's taking action.

City Engineer Roman Dowling says he hopes a treatment center with new technology will help remove nitrates.

He says a $5 million federal grant the city applied for will determine if that happens.

"The nitrates are here, are in the water below the maximum contaminant level, but enough to be eligible for this grant," said
Dowling.

Dowling says one well nearly exceeds the state safety level for nitrates. It's one of 16 wells that provide water to city residents.

"The City of Delano, in addition to a number of other communities throughout the Central Valley, are plagued with
contaminated water and a lot of our communities have arsenic and high levels of high nitrates in their drinking water. That's
something we should not have, it's not ok," said De Anda.

There will be a public hearing in Delano Monday night during the city council meeting.

The city will talk about what possible effects the proposed treatment center will have on surrounding property if it's built.
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Delano granted nearly $5 million to treat
water contamination

DELANO, CA - The state of California is granting Delano nearly $5 million to remove nitrates out of the city's drinking
water.

The city engineer says the money will be used for a unique pilot project, the first step in making Delano's water safer.

The city says not only does it have a problem with nitrates in its drinking water, it also has arsenic.

For many Delano residents, drinking water out of the faucet makes them feel uneasy. It's a feeling, they say, is
unnecessary.

"Many students go to school with canteens or water bottles because parents tell their children don't drink from the
faucet," said Valerie Gorospe with the Center on Race, Poverty and the Environment.

Gorospe says the city's drinking water is highly contaminated and calls it a sad reality for Delano residents.

"I think it's safe to say that every resident in Delano can agree that we all want clean, safe drinking water without being
hesitant on what we're drinking," said Gorospe.

City Engineer Roman Dowling told 17 News previously, one well nearly exceeds the state's safety level for nitrates.

It's one of 16 wells that provides water to city residents.

Dowling says recently, the city received a nearly $5 million state grant to build a treatment center with new technology
aimed at removing nitrates in drinking water.

But with help on the way, community members have questions.

"How much does it cost to clean up the nitrates in the water? Is this $5 million grant enough or are we going to seek
more grants?," said Gorospe.

Even if the city has to apply for more grants, residents say they're happy the city is taking action, trying to clean up a
problem that has a big impact on Delano.

Dowling says even though the state has approved the grant for Delano, the city council still has to approve it.

That's scheduled for April 21st.

Copyright 2014 kget.com Nexstar Broadcasting, All rights reserved. This material may not be published, broadcast, rewritten, or redistributed.
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Project Timeline and Deliverables
Start Date: upon receipt of grant

Goal 1: Increase knowledge and participation of community residents in their local water 
systems.
Month 1-3: Community Organizing of Tonyville, Tooleville, Plainview and El Rancho

1. Develop flyers to invite all community members to a general meeting to
discuss the topic of water boards.

a. At least 100 flyers will be distributed in the 4 communities by 
organizer and volunteers, door to door.

2. Facilitate one monthly meeting per community focused on their local 
water boards, along with one regular comite meeting a month.

a. There will be a total of 8 meetings in each of the 4 communities 
per quarter, for a total of 24 meetings per quarter.

3. Interested residents will then be asked to join the comite for that 
community

Month 4: Begin to participate in local water boards, as well as AGUA coalition
1. Begin attending local Water Board meetings as well as AGUA coalition 

meetings. 
2. New leaders will be identified to represent each community in the AGUA 

coaltion
a. One to two individuals per community.
b. The AGUA coalition meets once a month in Visalia, CA and a 

monthly stipend is provided.
3. Those leaders will serve as the liason between the AGUA coalition and 

their respective community’s comite.
Month 4-8: Begin trainings in: Robert’s Rules of Order, Who Are Your Decision 
Makers, Policy Process, How a Bill Becomes a Law, Water Board 101

1. EQS staff and other partner organizations will lead trainings.
2. All of the membership of each comite will be provided trainings on the 

above-mentioned topics. 
3. For these trainings, we will be inviting members of the core members 

comite groups, but also expanding the invitation to other community 
members who have attended general meetings and have expressed interest 
in

Month 7-12: Identify potential new leaders from existing pool of members in each
community’s comite and train them to become part of their local water board.

1. EQS staff will identify four new potential leaders
2. The criteria that we will use to identify these potential new leaders are:

a. Resident have shown an interest in becoming a new water 
board member

b. Resident has participated in all EQS trainings
c. Resident is willing to complete additional trainings with 

partner organizations to gain further knowledge and 
understanding of topics pertinent to their respective water 
board.



Month 12: Have at least one new member appointed to their respective water boards in
the communities of Tooleville and Plainview. In the communities of Tonyville and El
Rancho, appoint one representative each to attend City Council meetings pertaining to
water issues and then report back to their comite.

Goal 2: Establish new and further develop relationships with community partners.

Month 1-3: Organizer will formally introduce themselves to partner groups.
1. Irma Medellin, EQS’ lead organizer, and other EQS staff will introduce 

themselves to partner organizations that will work with us on this specific 
topic, such as Self Help Enterprises, Community Water Center, Tulare County 
agencies related to water, The City of Lindsay Public Works Department and 
California Rural Legal Assistance, Inc. 

Month 3-4: Identify at least four existing training opportunities from partner 
groups for community members, which will prepare them to be part of their local 
water boards. 
1. These trainings would be specific to the needs of local water boards.  For 

example, organizer would research the availability of trainings on such topics 
as policies and procedures for water boards, roles and responsibilities of water 
board members, ethics workshops and how to hire a consultant, etc.

2. If there is not an existing training available, EQS will work with partner 
groups to develop a training for the specific needs of each water board. 

Month 5-12: Organizer will schedule at least four introductory meetings between 
existing 

partner organizations and community members, and begin to calendar specific 
water trainings for community members to attend. All existing local water board 
members will also be invited to attend these trainings, should they wish to do so.

Month 1-12: Organizer will attend local (within Tulare County) partner organization 
meetings that pertain to water and water quality. For example, the organizer 
would attend a Tulare County Board of Supervisors’ meeting when the topic of 
water and sewage rate increases is being discussed. Organizer would then report 
back to EQS staff.
1. Organizer will attend a minimum of three partner organization meetings per 

quarter, for a total of at least 12 over the course of a ye



Salary $30,000
Travel (gas stipend for organizer. 
$150/month for 12 months) $1,800
Educational Materials $3,700
Meeting Expenses (location rental, water 
and snacks for each meeting) $3,000
Member Stipends (in the event that a 
community member needs to travel, we 
would give them a small stipend to offset
their loss of wages) $1,000
Travel (to cover the costs of transporting 
community members to meetings, 
trainings, etc) $3,000
Indirect costs $5,000
Fiscal Sponsor Fee (5% of grant total) $2,500

Total $50,000



Jul '13 - Jun '14

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4200 — Foundation & Grants 113,905.11
4100 — Donations 5,050.00

Total Income 118,955.11

Expense
5900 — Member Stipends
5901 — Irma Medellin stipend 20,800.00
5902 — Olga Marquez stipend 17,700.00
5903 — Luis Medellin stipend 4,270.00
5907 — Isabel Arrollo Stipend 17,700.00
5908 — Victor Cervantes Stipend 1,700.00
5900 — Member Stipends - Other 310.00

Total 5900 — Member Stipends 62,480.00

6020 — Bank Service Charges 3.00
6030 — Business Licenses and Perm... 422.00
6050 — Rent 8,420.00
6051 — Electricity Bill 992.12
6052 — Landline Telephone 866.07
6070 — General Office Supplies 2,596.69
6071 — Art Supplies 1,566.46
6090 — Office Expenses
6091 — Internet Service 500.53
6092 — Postage and Delivery 68.93
6093 — Printing 119.65
6094 — Webhosting 298.38
6095 — copies & fax 46.13
6096 — Telephone Expense 1,531.50
6097 — Computers, Printers, Softw... 4,744.77
6098 — Office Furniture 53.95

Total 6090 — Office Expenses 7,363.84

6320 — Donations to other Orgs 379.12
6060 — Meeting Expenses
6061 — Food 1,902.20
6062 — Location Rental 188.00
6063 — Travel 657.25
6060 — Meeting Expenses - Other 297.53

Total 6060 — Meeting Expenses 3,044.98

6340 — Conferences

El Quinto Sol De America
10/30/14 Profit and Loss Standard

July 2013 through June 2014
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Jul '13 - Jun '14

6341 — Conferences-Travel 2,114.81
6342 — Conferences-Lodging 671.59
6343 — Conferences-Food 514.06
6344 — Conferences-Stipend 50.00
6340 — Conferences - Other 1,355.00

Total 6340 — Conferences 4,705.46

6560 — Fundraising Dinner Expense 899.62
6300 — Professional Fees
6301 — Organizational Dev Consul... 100.00
6302 — Art Teachers
6303 — Art Teacher's Housing Sti... 2,494.77
6302 — Art Teachers - Other 1,600.00

Total 6302 — Art Teachers 4,094.77

Total 6300 — Professional Fees 4,194.77

6080 — Travel Expense
6081 — Car Rentals 907.00
6082 — Gas 759.57
6083 — Mileage 1,911.30
6084 — Food 356.79
6080 — Travel Expense - Other 11.00

Total 6080 — Travel Expense 3,945.66

6565 — Tooleville Community Garden 863.52

Total Expense 102,743.31

Net Ordinary Income 16,211.80

Net Income 16,211.80

El Quinto Sol De America
10/30/14 Profit and Loss Standard

July 2013 through June 2014
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Annual Project Budget: Clean water for Sacramento Valley disadvantaged communities Project Budget Dates: February 1

Organization:  Environmental Justice Coalition for Water Application Date:  October 31, 2014

A. Cash Expenses Line Item Total
Requested From CV 

DAC Pgrm.

Staff Salaries & Benefits (.50FTEs) 30000 20,000
Network Meetings & Trainings 3000 3000
Project Travel, including EJ Tour Bus 5000 2000
Postage 100 100
Rent & Utilities 1200 1200
Printing 250 250
Project consultants 20000 20,000
Translators & Interpreters 1500 1500

subtotal 61050 48,050
project overhead @ 15% 9158 1955

Totals 70,208$                   50,005$                   

B. Cash Income Source Total $ $ Raised to Date

Foundation Grants 20000 0
Individual Donations/Member Dues 2000 50
Requested from UU Funding Program 50000 0

Totals: 72,000$                   50$                          































Subject: Letter of support for EJCW’s application to the Rose Foundation’s Central Valley 

making. The Water Justice Network’s work is critical to the efforts of identifying, addres

rdable water for their communities. EJCW’s vision is for all 

California’s water resources management, EJCW is building a broad movement for 

ECOS’ mission is to achieve regional and community sustainability and a healthy environment for 



We are pleased to support EJCW’s application 



October 31, 2014 

Rose Foundation for Communities and the Environment 
1970 Broadway, #600 
Oakland, CA 94612 

Re: Support for EJCW and its application to the Central Valley Disadvantaged 
Community Water Quality Grants Program 

To whom it may concern: 

I am a core member of the Sacramento Valley Water Justice Network (Network). On behalf of 
myself and the Network, I write in strong support of the application of The Environmental 
Justice Coalition for Water (EJCW) to the Central Valley Disadvantaged Community Water 
Quality Grants Program.  

EJCW is a statewide coalition of grassroots and intermediary organizations focused on building a 
collective, community-based movement for democratic water allocation, management and policy 
development in California. EJCW is critical in connecting grassroots communities and statewide 
policy advocates across California. EJCW maintains a strong presence in Sacramento and has 
conducted many successful advocacy campaigns, here, and statewide. By connecting its 
members to each other and to potential allies throughout the state, as well as tackling structural 
inequity in California’s water resources management, EJCW is building a broad movement for 
water justice, including, right here, in the Sacramento Valley. EJCW is the lead organization in 
the development of the Sacramento Valley Water Justice Network. 

The mission of the Sacramento Valley Water Justice Network is to realize the human right to 
water and sanitation throughout the greater Sacramento region. The Sacramento Valley Water 
Justice Network is a community based organization dedicated to empowerment of the 
disenfranchised and low income communities to ensure equal and fair access to water 
recognizing that water is necessary to life and a right for all. We accomplish our work through 
public education and advocacy, capacity-building, and community empowerment   



We envision a region in which all people have access to safe, clean, affordable water and 
sanitation and in which water policy is developed democratically, including all voices, especially 
those of low-income communities and communities of color.  

As a professional in water supply and water conservation planning and implementation since the 
1980s, I have observed first-hand the inequality of program and service delivery to low-income 
communities when it comes to water use efficiency. The people who can least afford to pay for 
higher water rates are those with least access to programs and technologies that could help them 
use less water and, therefore, pay lower water bills. Too often, an end user needs to have access 
to ready cash to purchase a high-efficiency toilet or clothes washer and then wait for a rebate – a
condition which excludes those without ready cash for the initial purchase. And yet, in some 
communities, water agencies have determined that they can cost-effectively purchase and replace 
the water wasting equipment without requiring the customer to make an extra purchase. These 
kinds of programs need to be made available in all communities, not just a few and the well-to-
do.

In view of our historic drought and the need for everyone to reduce their water use, high-
efficiency products should be made available in low-income communities and, as water agencies 
determine new rate structures, organizations like the Sacramento Valley Water Justice Network 
and The Environmental Justice Coalition for Water, of which we are a part, are essential to 
ensure that fair and equitable policies are adopted  in the hundreds of different water agencies 
that manage water supplies across our state and, especially, in the Sacramento Valley. 

In summary, the Sacramento Valley Water Justice Network strongly supports the application of 
The Environmental Justice Coalition for Water for the  

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions. I can be reached by e-mail at 
<cbconserv@gmail.com>.

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Chris Brown 













Colin Bailey, J.D.
Executive Director, Environmental Justice Coalition for Water
P.O. Box 188911, Sacramento, CA 95818-8911(map)
(916) 432-EJCW (3529) text okay / ejcw.org / @EJCW

Sign up here to host a screening of the new documentary film, Thirsty for Justice: the struggle for the human right to water, in your community! Watch the trailer.
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FRIENDS OF MARSH CREEK WATERSHED 
Financial Statement 
Fiscal Year Ending 8/31/2014 

Revenue: 
Grants 64739.25 
Dues 580
Contributions 260

Total 
Revenues 65579.25 

Expenses: 
Grants 65752.71 
Administrative 1948.11 

Total 
Expenses 67700.82 

Excess of Expenditures over Revenues 2121.57 



I would like to provide my support Friends of Marsh Creek Watershed’s
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Attachment: Deliverables and Timeline for Project Activities 
(This timeline anticipates a January 2015 – December 2015 grant period but allows for funding to 

support ongoing work if funding becomes available later in the calendar year)  

A. Assess Analyses and Efforts That Have Occurred to Date  

1. Review preliminary studies that have been completed or are underway with respect to 
wastewater management alternatives in Lanare and Matheny Tract. 

a. Timeline: December 2014 – January 2015 
b. Deliverables: One pager in English and Spanish Summarizing Findings to Date and 

Identified Next Steps  

B. Engage Community Residents From Project Development Through Implementation 

1. Along with Matheny Tract Committee and Community United in Lanare, we will create 
educational materials and hold community education workshops in the communities of 
Lanare and Matheny Tract to support and ensure inclusion of residents in development and 
implementation of efforts to convert communities from septic to public wastewater systems. 
We will also conduct outreach and education in Riverdale to ensure collaboration between 
Lanare and Riverdale. We will conduct community education throughout the project.   

a. Timeline: January 2014-Ongoing 
b. Deliverables: Community education materials on the health, environmental and 

economic impacts of failing septic systems; implications of service extension 
including physical and managerial consolidation; and processes and decisions related 
to a potential wastewater project. At least 12 community meetings.

C. Support Efforts to Complete Feasibility Studies of Septic to Sewer Conversions Projects

1. We will support efforts to develop, fund and implement a feasibility study in Lanare. Our 
work will focus on ensuring community engagement throughout the process.  

a. Timeline: January 2014 –ongoing  
b. Deliverables: Application for funding of a feasibility study will submitted to 

appropriate agencies; funding for the study will be secured; the feasibility study will 
be underway; residents will participate in at least 2 meetings related to 
implementation of the feasibility study.  

2. We will work in partnership with the Matheny Tract Committee and others to support 
implementation of a feasibility study in Matheny Tract. We will focus on ensuring 
community engagement throughout implementation of the study.  

a. Timeline: Months: January 2015 – September 2015 
b. Deliverable: Completion of Feasibility Study for Matheny Tract. Residents will 

participate in at least 2 meetings related to implementation of the feasibility study.  
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3. As part of or to complement feasibility studies, we will develop and implement community 
wide surveys or other tools in Lanare and Matheny Tract to identify septic system issues, 
quantify maintenance costs, and assess interest in abandoning septic systems and converting 
to a public wastewater system  

a. Timeline: March 2015-October 2015 
b. Deliverable: Survey tool and methodology for implementation.  Analysis of results 

for both Lanare and Matheny Tract 

D. Collaborate with Local And Regional Governmental Entities 

1. Lanare: We will develop and build on relationships with local (Lanare Community Services 
District, Riverdale Public Utilities District) and regional government agencies (Fresno 
LAFCO, Fresno County) to ensure collaboration throughout the process and facilitate project 
success.  

a. Timeline: March 2015 – Ongoing  
b. Deliverables: At least 2 joint meetings between representatives from Riverdale and 

representatives from Lanare to discuss collaboration on a wastewater treatment 
project; discussions underway with respect to governance structures and processes 
necessary to facilitate converting residents from reliance on septic systems to a public 
wastewater system.  

2. Matheny Tract: We will develop and build on relationships with local (City of Tulare) and 
regional government agencies (Tulare LAFCO, Tulare County) to ensure collaboration 
throughout the process and facilitate project success. 

a. Timeline: January 2015 – Ongoing  
b. Deliverables: Agreement in place to extend wastewater services from the City of 

Tulare to Matheny Tract; commitment from Tulare County to apply for funds as 
necessary to complete design and construction of a wastewater project; identified 
governance structure to serve Matheny Tract residents (if necessary).  

E. Support Efforts to Seek Funding to Complete Matheny Tract Wastewater Project  

1. We will support efforts to secure funding for design and construction of a wastewater 
project in Matheny Tract. We will also help craft funding and financing packages to 
assist lower income residents in paying costs and fees associated with connection to 
wastewater service. 

a. Timeline: June 2015 – December 2015 
b. Deliverables: Application for construction submitted to appropriate agencies; 

potential funding and financing programs identified to mitigate costs of 
connection to the wastewater system for lower income residents.  

F. Inform Similar Efforts Taking Place Throughout the Region 

1. We will evaluate our progress and share out lessons learned and best practices throughout the 
grant period to inform similar efforts throughout the region 

a. Timeline: March 2015 – Ongoing 
b. Deliverables: Quarterly progress updates including best practices and lessons learned; 

a short evaluation at the end of the grant period compiling best practices and lessons 
learned.  



Personnel Total Project Cost
Request to The Rose 

Foundation
Co-director  (.15) $9,750 $7,313
Policy Advocate (.4) $18,000 $13,500
Staff Attorney (.1) $5,500 $4,125
Program Assistant (.05) $2,750 $2,063

Benefits  @ 32% $11,520 $8,640
Total Personnel $47,520 $35,640

Non-Personnel
Operating Costs
Phones / internet $804 $603
Equipment and Supplies $210 $158
Travel $1,200 $900
Printing $300 $225
Meeting expenses $400 $300

Total Non-Personnel $2,914 $2,186
Direct Costs $50,434 $37,826

Indirect Costs (15%) $7,565 $5,674
Total Direct and Indirect $57,999 $43,500

Other Costs

Total Other Costs
Grand Total $57,999 $43,500

BUDGET NOTES
Personnel

The Program Assistant will assist in activities 

Non-Personnel
Phones and Internet are the portion of landline, internet and cell phone costs attributable to the project

Travel costs include travel to community meetings, meetings with stakeholders (approx. 24 meetings)

Printing includes printing costs for edcuational materials and for reports (as applicable)

Meeting costs include food and miscellaneous meeting expenses

Indirect costs include our fee to Tides Center for administrative services and other indirect costs

Central Valley Disadvantaged Community Water Quality Grants 
Program

Proposed Budget for 12 month Project Implementation

Equipment and supplies includes meeting supplies and supplies for education and outreach. 

The co-director will establish long term and intermediate goals for the project and supervise both the policy 
adovacte and staff attorney to ensure project completion

The Policy Advocate will be primarily responsible for implementing the project with support from the co-
director and staff attorney

The staff attorney will assist in project implemetnation and will be responsible for legal analysis of relevant 
laws and regulations inlcluding those related to LAFCO processes and proposition 218
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Project 1387 - Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountab

Actual Budget

Variance
Favorable/

(Unfavorable) Actual Budget

Variance
Favorable/

(Unfavorable)
2013  Annual

Budget
Budget

Remaining

December 2013 January 01, 2013 through December 31, 2013

Revenue

     Public Support

$30,150.00 $0.00 $30,150.00 $414,441.00 $0.00 $414,441.00 $0.00 ($414,441.00)          Grants & Contributions

$30,150.00 $0.00 $30,150.00 $414,441.00 $0.00 $414,441.00 $0.00 ($414,441.00)     Total Public Support

     Other Revenue

$44,476.05 $0.00 $44,476.05 $60,976.05 $0.00 $60,976.05 $0.00 ($60,976.05)          External Revenue

$44,476.05 $0.00 $44,476.05 $60,976.05 $0.00 $60,976.05 $0.00 ($60,976.05)     Total Other Revenue

     Net Assets Released from Restriction

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00          Release of Net Assets

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00     Total Net Assets Released from

$74,626.05 $0.00 $74,626.05 $475,417.05 $0.00 $475,417.05 $0.00 ($475,417.05)Total Revenue

Expenses

     Operating-Personnel

$21,024.70 $0.00 ($21,024.70) $102,109.61 $0.00 ($102,109.61) $0.00 ($102,109.61)          Wages/Salaries

$1,903.17 $0.00 ($1,903.17) $10,072.05 $0.00 ($10,072.05) $0.00 ($10,072.05)          Payroll Taxes

$3,553.20 $0.00 ($3,553.20) $14,680.13 $0.00 ($14,680.13) $0.00 ($14,680.13)          Benefits

$26,481.07 $0.00 ($26,481.07) $126,861.79 $0.00 ($126,861.79) $0.00 ($126,861.79)     Total Operating-Personnel

     Operating-Non-Personnel

$10.95 $0.00 ($10.95) $1,333.80 $0.00 ($1,333.80) $0.00 ($1,333.80)          Professional Services

$1,284.53 $0.00 ($1,284.53) $8,448.32 $0.00 ($8,448.32) $0.00 ($8,448.32)          Rent

$982.04 $0.00 ($982.04) $2,077.59 $0.00 ($2,077.59) $0.00 ($2,077.59)          Utilities

$56.63 $0.00 ($56.63) $93.29 $0.00 ($93.29) $0.00 ($93.29)          Postage & Express Services

$95.96 $0.00 ($95.96) $4,335.91 $0.00 ($4,335.91) $0.00 ($4,335.91)          Supplies

$381.25 $0.00 ($381.25) $950.27 $0.00 ($950.27) $0.00 ($950.27)          Printing & Reference Materials

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,650.34 $0.00 ($3,650.34) $0.00 ($3,650.34)          Insurance

$1,922.38 $0.00 ($1,922.38) $7,777.56 $0.00 ($7,777.56) $0.00 ($7,777.56)          Travel & Conferences

$4,733.74 $0.00 ($4,733.74) $28,667.08 $0.00 ($28,667.08) $0.00 ($28,667.08)     Total Operating-Non-Personnel

     Fees

$6,716.34 $0.00 ($6,716.34) $41,850.08 $0.00 ($41,850.08) $0.00 ($41,850.08)          Internal Fees

$6,716.34 $0.00 ($6,716.34) $41,850.08 $0.00 ($41,850.08) $0.00 ($41,850.08)     Total Fees
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Project 1387 - Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountab

Actual Budget

Variance
Favorable/

(Unfavorable) Actual Budget

Variance
Favorable/

(Unfavorable)
2013  Annual

Budget
Budget

Remaining

December 2013 January 01, 2013 through December 31, 2013

     Other Expenses

$380.00 $0.00 ($380.00) $885.00 $0.00 ($885.00) $0.00 ($885.00)          Memberships & Dues

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21.90 $0.00 ($21.90) $0.00 ($21.90)          Communication & Outreach

$80.44 $0.00 ($80.44) $80.44 $0.00 ($80.44) $0.00 ($80.44)          Board Expenses

$20.00 $0.00 ($20.00) $917.22 $0.00 ($917.22) $0.00 ($917.22)          Other Expenses

$480.44 $0.00 ($480.44) $1,904.56 $0.00 ($1,904.56) $0.00 ($1,904.56)     Total Other Expenses

$38,411.59 $0.00 ($38,411.59) $199,283.51 $0.00 ($199,283.51) $0.00 ($199,283.51)Total Expense

$239,919.08 $0.00 $239,919.08 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00BEGINNING NET ASSETS

$36,214.46 $0.00 $36,214.46 $276,133.54 $0.00 $276,133.54 $0.00 ($276,133.54)NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

$276,133.54 $0.00 $276,133.54 $276,133.54 $0.00 $276,133.54 $0.00 ($276,133.54)ENDING NET ASSETS



October 27, 2014 

Rose Foundation for Communities and the Environment 
1970 Broadway, #600 
Oakland, CA 94612
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We are writing in strong support of Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability’s proposal 

to the City of Tulare’s drinking water system and 

the City of Tulare’s wastewater system. Septic sys

Tulare’s wastewater facility so it seems fair that we should have access to the wastewater system 

and ensure that the community’s
represented. It’s als



Please let us know if you have any questions or if you’d like any other information. 



October 27, 2014 

Rose Foundation for Communities and the Environment 
1970 Broadway, #600 
Oakland, CA 94612

Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability’s proposal 

With Leadership Counsel’s support we look forward to engaging more of our neighbors and 
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Hourly Charge Rates $92.17 $74.71
Task 1 Establish & Promote the DAC-C Position

Attend meetings of the Kings Basin Water Authority and Tulare Lake Basin Coordinating Group 6 48
Develop materials that promote the position to IRWM 0 12
Individualized Outreach to DACs 0 30
Documentation and Feedback 2 10

Task Manhours
Task Fee Subtotals

Task 2 Define Specific DAC Participation and Project Development Challenges 
Utilize existing DAC studies (2) to outline strategy for support 4 20
Identify 3-5 DACs to target for the project, based upon reports, existing relationships and outreach 0 5
Work with selected DACs to identify reasons/barriers to participation in IRWM 0 25
Work with selected IRWM group to identify reasons/barriers to DAC participation in IRWM 0 10
Documentation and Feedback 2 12

Task Manhours
Task Fee Subtotals

Task 3 Education and Capacity Building of Local DACs and IRWM groups
Education of DACs about IRWM 0 25
Coordinate and carry out two educational tours 10 150
Documentation and Feedback 2 10

Task Manhours
Task Fee Subtotals

Task 4 Addressing Local Barriers
Improve Access to Information: Assist in development of online resource library 0 48
Research successful funding models for DAC participation in IRWM 0 20
Facilitate discussions among local IRWM about possible funding scenarios 0 20
Prepare documents proposing DAC-funding strategies for IRWM groups 5 40
Documentation and Feedback 2 10

Task Manhours
Task Fee Subtotals

Task 5 Support the Development of Water Projects
Coordinate network of engineers and universities interested in providing technical assistance 5 25
Prepare funding applications to help with technical assistance networking opportunities 0 25
Prepare funding applications to IRWM on behalf of DACs 0 25
Build alliances between DACs; pilot ways to share resources 0 40
Documentation and Feedback 2 10

Task Manhours
Task Fee Subtotals

TOTAL HOURS
FEE SUBTOTALS

Total Project Cost $54,000

PROPOSAL TO ROSE FOUNDATION FOR IRWM DAC COORDINATOR
ESTIMATED SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES STAFFING PLAN WITH COST BREAKDOWN SUMMAR

Proposed Tasks and Estimated Expenses
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SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2013

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
3

ASSETS   
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,392,484
Accounts receivable, net 1,473,067
Grants receivable 601,447
Notes receivable, current portion 5,778
Prepaid expenses 172,590
Construction-in-progress 2,783,633

Total current assets 22,428,999
Other Assets

Notes receivable, net of current portion 9,602,168
Investments in marketable securities 9,531
Investments in affiliates, at cost 1,220,392
Property held for sale 349,542
Impound/reserve accounts 2,057,048
Land held for development, net 12,740,382

Total other assets 25,979,063

Plant, Property and Equipment, Net 18,034,056
Total assets $    66,442,118

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities

Current portion of notes payable $    1,390,921
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,529,607
Refundable advances 1,099,250

Total current liabilities 4,019,778

Deferred Income – Revolving Loans 7,799,087
Accrued Interest 2,293,572
Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 20,633,095

Total liabilities 34,745,532
Net Assets

Unrestricted:
Board designated – Washburn Funds 3,023,724
Unrestricted, undesignated 24,227,101

27,250,825
Temporarily restricted 653,936
Permanently restricted 3,791,825

Total net assets 31,696,586
Total liabilities and net assets $    66,442,118



SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
4

Unrestricted 

 Temporarily 

Restricted 

 Permanently 

Restricted 

  

Total 

Revenues, Gains and Other Support
Grants $    3,304,317      $                    - $                    - $   3,304,317   
Contract income 3,228,074 - - 3,228,074
Project management fees 90,576 - - 90,576
Interest income 344,707 205 - 344,912
Land/Development sales 5,840,770 - - 5,840,770
Contributions 270,885 14,419 340,000 625,304
Other income 662,893 11,367 - 674,260
Rental income 2,781,920 - - 2,781,920

       Revenues, gains and other support 16,890,133 25,991 340,000 16,890,133
Net assets released from restriction 181,250 (181,250) - -

       Total revenues, gains and other support 16,705,392 (155,259) 340,000 16,890,133

Expenses
Salaries 4,313,991 - - 4,313,991
Fringe benefits 1,560,688 - - 1,560,688
Contract services 824,297 - - 824,297
Cost of sales 5,793,764 - - 5,793,764
Travel 250,414 - - 250,414
Space 756,362 - - 756,362
Supplies 103,569 - - 103,569
Equipment rent/lease/purchase 86,483 - - 86,483
Telephone 52,712 - - 52,712
Postage 30,663 - - 30,663
Depreciation 915,488 - - 915,488
Other 573,196 - - 573,196
Deferred loans 708,600 - - 708,600
HWWS loans 8,465 - - 8,465
Re-Use loans 390,800 390,800
Insurance 288,908 - - 288,908
Printing 4,283 - - 4,283
Interest 435,585 - - 435,585
Project costs 313,290 - - 313,290
Reserve expenses 62,221 - - 62,221

Total expenses 17,473,779 - - 17,473,779
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (768,386) (155,259) 340,000 (583,646)
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 28,019,212 809,195 3,451,825 32,280,232

Net Assets at End of Year $     27,250,825 $       653,936 $ 3,791,825 $   31,696,586 



SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
5

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Decrease in net assets $      (583,646)
Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 915,488
Decrease in operating assets 2,939,445
Increase in operating liabilities 774,857

Net cash provided by operating activities 4,046,144

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments for purchases of property and equipment (18,086)
Advances paid on notes receivable (4,403,756)
Redemptions of investments, net (685)
Payments received on notes receivable 5,198,005
Contributions made to investments in affiliates (233,820)
Maturities of certificates of deposit 57,547

Net cash provided by investing activities 599,205

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings on long-term debt 1,880,480
Principal payments on long-term debt (4,075,072)

Net cash used in financing activities (2,194,592)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,450,757

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 14,941,727
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 17,392,484

Supplemental Cash Flows Disclosures
Cash payments during the year for  interest, net of capitalized interest of approximately $221,000 $     300,015



SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

6

Note 1.  Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Activities:  Self-Help Enterprises (“the Organization”) is a non-profit corporation organized in 1965.  
The Organization was formed for the purpose of improving the living conditions of low income residents in the 
San Joaquin Valley (the “Valley”) of Central California.  The Organization is dedicated to the belief that a decent, 
safe, secure and healthy home is a basic building block of family, neighborhood, and community.  To this end, the 
Organization is committed to the creation of housing opportunity and the elimination of housing-related health 
risks through the development of new housing, preservation of affordable housing stock, and improvement of 
existing housing affordable to low-income Valley households.  The Organization also assists communities in 
meeting basic infrastructure needs, such as safe drinking water.  The Organization’s “self-help” approach 
encourages the participation of low-income people in direct services, decision-making, and developing skills for 
self-sufficiency.  It is the philosophy of the Organization to work with, rather than for, these individuals and their 
communities to complement local efforts to meet their housing and related needs. 

The Organization provides technical assistance and supervision to low-income families as they build their own 
homes, oversees the rehabilitation or purchase of existing homes for low-income families, assists small and rural 
communities in obtaining or improving water and sewer services, and develops multifamily rental housing 
projects for farm workers and other low-income families and provides assistance to first-time homebuyers. 

Basis of Presentation:  The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and 
activities according to three classes of net assets:  unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and 
permanently restricted net assets.  

Method of Accounting:  The Organization uses the accrual basis method of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

Principles of Consolidation:  The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Self-Help Enterprises; 
North Park Apartment Housing Corporation; Self-Help Communities I, LLC; and Nueva Sierra Vista 
Corporation.  All significant interrelated items and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation.   

North Park Apartment Housing Corporation (“North Park”) is a non-profit corporation owned by Self-Help 
Enterprises.  The Corporation is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Service Code 501(c)(3) and 
section 23701(d) of the State of California Corporations Code.  North Park operates North Park Apartments, a 104 
unit low-income apartment complex located in Oildale, California.  The acquisition and rehabilitation of the 
apartment complex was facilitated by the Organization under the Low-Income Housing Preservation and Resident 
Home Ownership Act of 1990. 

Self-Help Communities I, LLC (“SHC I”) is a limited liability company and therefore exempt from income taxes.  
SHC I’s sole member is Self-Help Enterprises. SHC I owns and operates Solinas Village, a 52 unit affordable 
housing complex located in McFarland, California. 



SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Note 1.  Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Principles of Consolidation (Continued): 

Nueva Sierra Vista Corporation is a Corporation owned by Self Help Enterprises.  Nueva Sierra Vista Corporation 
is the managing general partner in Nueva Sierra Vista Associates, which owns and operates Nueva Sierra Vista, a 
35 unit affordable housing community in Richgrove, California. 

Use of Estimates:  The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Revenue Recognition:  Grant revenues are recognized when the related grant expenditure is incurred.  Contract 
revenues are recognized as earned or when services are performed.  All leases are classified as operating leases 
and are recognized on the straight-line basis over the terms of the related leases.  Revenues from sales of homes 
are recognized when sales are closed and title passes to the new homeowner.  Revenues from the sales of land are 
recognized when title passes and collectability of the receivable is reasonably assured.    

Contributions:  Contributions received are measured at fair value and recorded as revenues or gains in the period 
received, or as assets, depending on the form of benefits received.  Contributions received include not only 
unconditional receipts of cash or other assets, but also unconditional promises to make contributions.  
Contributions are reported as temporarily or permanently restricted support, or as unrestricted support, based on 
the donor’s imposed restrictions or conditions.  Contributions with donor-imposed restrictions are reported as 
restricted support; however, donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period 
are reported as unrestricted support.  Restricted support increases permanently or temporarily restricted net assets, 
and contributions without donor-imposed restrictions are reported as unrestricted support that increases 
unrestricted net assets.   

Cash and Cash Equivalents:  For purposes of reporting the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all 
cash accounts and all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of twelve (12) months or 
less to be cash equivalents. 

Grants and Accounts Receivable:  The Organization utilizes the allowance method of accounting for and reporting 
uncollectible or doubtful accounts.  Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts based on an 
analysis of specific customers, taking into consideration the age of past due accounts and an assessment of the 
customer’s ability to pay.  At June 30, 2013, management considered all accounts to be fully collectible, and 
therefore, no allowance was recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.  Accounts 
receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible.  Recoveries of accounts receivable previously written off 
are recorded as income when received.  All accounts receivable are non-interest bearing. The Organization grants 
credit to its customers substantially all of which are government agencies (federal, state and local), and generally 
requires no collateral from its customers. 



SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Note 1.  Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Notes Receivable and Allowance for Losses:  Notes receivable are stated at unpaid principal balances, less an 
allowance for loan losses.  Interest on loans is recognized over the term of the loan and is calculated using the 
simple-interest method on principal amounts outstanding.  The allowance is increased by charges to income and 
decreased by charge-offs (net of recoveries).  Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance 
is based on adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, and current economic conditions.  
Loans are placed on non-accrual status when management believes that the loans are impaired or collection of 
interest is doubtful.  Interest income generally is not recognized on specific impaired loans unless the likelihood 
of further loss is remote.  Interest income on impaired loans is recognized only to the extent of interest payments 
received.  At June 30, 2013, management has determined no allowance for losses is necessary. 

Investments in Marketable Securities:  Investments in marketable securities consist primarily of equity securities 
and are recorded at fair value.  The fair values of equity and debt securities are determined by closing prices on 
the last day of the fiscal year as published by the markets in which the securities are traded. See Note 4 for a
discussion of fair value. 

Property Held for Sale:  Property held for sale is recorded at the lower of cost or net realizable value and is no 
longer depreciated.  Included in property held for sale is the Madera building which has entered escrow 
subsequent to the end of the year (see Note 21).

Investments in Affiliates:  The Organization accounts for its investments in affiliates in which it has less than 20% 
ownership using the cost method of accounting.  Under the cost method of accounting, a contribution made to an 
affiliate is treated as an increase to the investment account, and dividends received from the affiliates are treated 
as a reduction of the investment account to the extent that all other accounts with the affiliate have been satisfied.   

Investments in affiliates consist of several other entities whose primary purpose is ownership of a small general 
partnership interest (generally less than 1%) in several low-income housing partnerships. The entities are Solinas 
Village, Inc., Almond Court, Inc., SHE-CEF 1, Inc., Villa Santa Guadalupe Corp., Parksdale Village II LLC, 
Goshen Village II LLC, and Viscaya Gardens LLC.  These entities own interests in the following projects: 

Affiliate: Project:
Solinas Village, Inc. -  Gateway Village 
Almond Court, Inc. -   Almond Court, Villa Hermosa, and Sunrise Villa 
SHE-CEF 1, Inc. -  Caliente Creek, Casitas del Sol, Cottonwood Creek, Goshen 

Village, Rolling Hills, Villa del Rey, Biola Village, 
Washington Plaza, Sand Creek, Lincoln Plaza, Rancho 
Lindo, and Parksdale Village  

Villa Santa Guadalupe Corp. -  Villa de Guadalupe 
Goshen Village II LLC - Goshen Village II 
Parksdale Village II LLC - Parksdale Village II 
Viscaya Gardens LLC - Viscaya Gardens Village  
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Note 1.  Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Impound/Reserve Accounts: Impound accounts include cash that is held on deposit by various trustees or 
financial institutions as specified by the terms of various loan agreements.  The cash held in these accounts is to 
be used for real estate taxes and insurance premiums pertaining to the property that collateralizes the loan payable.  
Reserve accounts consist of cash held in a replacement reserve set aside for future repairs and maintenance of the 
specified property and tenant rental security deposits. 

Construction-in-Progress:  Construction-in-progress includes New Homes and Multifamily Housing construction 
costs which are stated at the lower of capitalized costs or net realizable value.  Capitalized costs include property 
taxes, interest, and insurance incurred during construction, and direct and certain indirect project costs.  Indirect 
project costs are generally allocated using the relative sales value method.   

Land Held for Development:  Land held for development includes inventories of land which are stated at the 
lower of capitalized costs or net realizable value, and has been reduced by an allowance for impairment of 
$5,478,800 at June 30, 2013.  Capitalized costs include pre-acquisition costs, property taxes, interest, insurance,
and subdivision improvements incurred during development. 

Plant, Property and Equipment:  Plant, property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.  
Depreciation is computed by using the straight-line method ratably over the estimated useful life of the asset.  The 
Organization capitalizes property and equipment when cost exceeds $5,000.  Construction-in-progress is not 
depreciated until the project is completed and the related asset has been placed in service.  Costs of planned major 
maintenance activities are expensed as incurred.  Estimated useful lives vary within the following ranges: 

Years
Building and improvements 10 – 40
Equipment 3 – 7

Long-Lived Assets:  Long-lived assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the related carrying amount may not be recoverable.  When required, 
impairment losses on assets to be held and used are recognized based on the fair value of the asset and long-lived 
assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. 

Deferred Income:  Deferred income represents management fees not yet recognized,  revolving loan funds in 
which the Organization has been named beneficiary (see Note 7) and refundable advances.  Refundable advances 
represent grant funds received, but not yet spent.  Should the grant funds not be spent in accordance with the grant 
agreement, the funds are required to be remitted back to the grantor. 
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Note 1.  Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Income Taxes: Self-Help Enterprises is a tax-exempt corporation under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code (“IRC”) and section 23701(d) of the State of California Corporations Code.  The Organization is subject to 
taxation on any unrelated business income.  

Uncertain Tax Positions:  The Organization recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions 
are more likely than not of being sustained.  The Organization does not believe its consolidated financial 
statements include any uncertain tax positions. 

The federal and state income tax returns of the Organization have not been examined by the respective taxing 
authorities.  Therefore, years subsequent to 2008 are open for examination by state taxing authorities, and years 
subsequent to 2009 are open for examination by federal taxing authorities. 

Fundraising Activities:  Fundraising expenses included in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities 
for the year ended June 30, 2013 totaled $10,018 (See Note 13).  Costs of acquiring or applying for a contract or 
grant are categorized as administrative expenses and not separately stated as fundraising expenses. 

Note 2.  Cash Flow Statement  

Detail for the (increases) decreases in operating assets and increases (decreases) in operating liabilities are as 
follows at June 30, 2013: 

Amount
Operating Assets:

Accounts receivable $ 360,676 
Grants receivable (117,117)
Prepaid expenses and inventory 49,363
Escrow deposits and impounds 112,812
Construction-in-progress 2,533,711

$ 2,939,445
Operating Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ (314,679) 
Homeowner funds payable (514,392)
Deferred income and refundable advances 1,603,928

$ 774,857
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Note 3.  Notes Receivable 

Notes receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2013: 

Amount
Related Parties:

Staff computer, tool, and other loans; non-interest bearing, principal repayments deducted 
from semi-monthly paychecks; unsecured.

$          5,778 

Almond Court Partners ( 1% general partner); principal due December 31, 2025. The note is 
non-interest bearing; unsecured. 199,584

Caliente Creek Partners (.01% general partner);principal due December 31, 2025. The note 
is non-interest bearing; unsecured. 250,114

Rolling Hills Partners (.01% general partner); principal due October 1, 2026.  The note is 
non-interest bearing; unsecured. 300,000 

Non-Related Parties: 

Revolving loan programs; various notes to eligible participants; interest and non-interest 
bearing (ranging from 0% to 1%); to be repaid in full over terms ranging from 30 to 50 
years, or upon transfer of the property; collateralized by deeds of trust.

8,525,718 

Household Water Well System Loans, various 20-year notes, interest payable monthly at 
1%, due through August 2028; collateralized by deeds of trust. 273,849

Community Development Loan Fund, varying interest rates and terms. 52,903
9,607,946

Less current portion (5,778)
$ 9,602,168
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Note 4.  Fair Value Measurements 

The Organization’s investments are reported at fair value in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
financial position.  The methods used to measure fair value may produce an amount that may not be indicative of 
the net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.   Furthermore, although the Organization believes its 
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different 
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a 
different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 

The fair value measurement accounting literature establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value.  This hierarchy consists of three broad levels:  Level 1 inputs 
consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and have the highest priority, Level 2 
inputs which are inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, and Level 3 inputs which have the lowest 
priority.  The Organization uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure the fair 
value of its investments.  When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs because they 
generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.  No Level 2 or Level 3 inputs were applicable to the 
Organization in determining fair value. 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets that the Plan has the ability to access. 

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.   There have 
been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2013. 

Level 1 Fair Value Measurements 

Marketable Securities:  The fair values of marketable securities held by the Organization are based on quoted 
market prices. 

Investments in marketable securities consisted of the following at June 30, 2013:

Amount
Marketable Securities:

General Electric Company – 300 shares common stock $ 6,957
West America Bank – 50 shares common stock 2,284
Wells Fargo & Company – 7 shares common stock 290

$ 9,531
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Note 5.  Investments in Affiliates – At Cost  

Investments in affiliates – at cost consisted of the following at June 30, 2013: 

Amount
Almond Court, Inc. $ 2,442
Parksdale Village Partners 347,021
Goshen Village Partners II 
SHE CEF1, Inc.

208,800 
529,593

Solinas Village, Inc. 132,507
Villa Santa Guadalupe Corp. 29

$ 1,220,392

Note 6.  Plant, Property and Equipment 

Plant, property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 2013: 

Amount
Land $ 1,926,268
Buildings and improvements 26,617,381
Equipment 1,710,303

30,253,952
Less accumulated depreciation (12,219,896)

$ 18,034,056

Net plant, property and equipment are labeled under the following categories (used for internal managerial 
purposes only) at June 30, 2013: 

Amount
Administrative $ 1,351,617
Multifamily 16,682,439

$ 18,034,056

Included in plant, property and equipment are apartment buildings leased to others under operating leases 
generally not exceeding one (1) year.  Total cost of leased property at June 30, 2013 was $27,295,364 and 
accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2013 was $10,612,925. Current year depreciation expense for the 2013 
fiscal year was $915,488.   

The Organization receives monthly rental income of $3,500 for an office building under a lease agreement which 
expires in February 2014. 
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Note 7.  Revolving Loan Programs 

Self-Help Enterprises’ (“SHE”) Revolving Loan Fund is used primarily to assist participants in SHE’s 
homeownership programs by making short-term installment loans and long-term deferred loans to eligible 
homebuyers/homeowners. The purposes of these loans include short-term, no-interest or low-interest financing 
for construction costs which exceed available loan amounts, direct mortgage assistance, and seller financing for 
building lots. The funds are derived from various state grant programs (CalHome and HOME), NeighborWorks 
America, and other private SHE resources.  Loans are secured against the real estate, and most are due and 
payable upon sale of the property by the homebuyer.  Loans made under CalHome, HOME, and other various 
state programs where SHE is the beneficiary are accounted for by recording deferred revenue.  On these loans, 
revenue is recognized as payments are received on the outstanding balances. 

Deferred income at June 30, 2013 consisted of revolving loans in the amount of $7,799,087 and is recorded as a 
non-current liability in the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position. 

Note 8.  Refundable Advances 

Refundable advances consisted of the following grants at June 30, 2013: 
Amount

State of CA Department of Housing & Community Development – CSHHP
State of CA Department of Housing & Community Development – CalHome 
United States Department of Agriculture – Rural Development 523 TA 

$        243,494 
544,031 
311,725

$ 1,099,250

Note 9.  Financing Receivables 

The majority of the Organization’s financing receivables consist of loans for participants in SHE’s 
Homeownership programs.  At June 30, 2013 these notes receivable loans represented 20.4% of total assets.  
Balances of financing receivables at June, 30 2013 are presented as follows: 

Participant Loans 
Receivable

Other Loans 
Receivable

Affiliate Loans 
Receivable Total

Ending Balance 6/30/13 $ 8,525,718 $             332,530 $               749,698 $         9,607,946

Ending balance
individually evaluated for 
impairment $                      - $                          - $                          - $                         - 

Ending balance 
collectively evaluated for 
impairment $ 8,525,718 $             332,530 $           749,698 $          9,607,946
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Note 9.  Financing Receivables (Continued) 

For each class of financing receivable, the following table presents the recorded investment by credit quality 
indicator as of June 30, 2013: 

Participant Loans
Receivable

Other Loans
Receivable

Affiliate Loans
Receivable

Current or not more than 90 days past 
due $                         - $                 - $                         -

In payment status, current $                         - $           332,530 $                         -

In payment status, paying but behind $                         - $                       - $                         -

In payment status, not paying $                         - $                       - $                           -

Not yet in payment status $           8,525,718 $                        - $               749,698

Properly originated and serviced $                         - $                       - $                         -

Total $           8,525,718 $            332,530 $              749,698

For federal and state agency receivables, the credit quality indicator is whether the account is more than 90 days 
past due. For revolving loans the credit quality indicator is performance determined by repayments status and 
delinquency status. Delinquency status is updated monthly by management.  

Allowances for estimated losses are established based on prior collection experience and current economic factors 
which, in management's judgment, could influence the ability of loan recipients to repay the amounts per the loan  
terms. Loan balances are written off only when they are deemed to be permanently uncollectible. The 
Organization determined the allowance for estimated losses on these financing receivables by looking at historical 
default rates and analyzing the aging of the past due loans. All nonperforming loans are included in the allowance 
for estimated losses. The Organization did not record an allowance for estimated losses on loan receivables in the 
year ended June 30, 2013. 
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Note 9.  Financing Receivables (Continued) 

The aging of the financing receivables portfolio by classes as of June 30, 2013 is presented as follows: 

30-59 Days 

Past Due

  

60-89 Days 

Past Due

  

Greater Than 

90 Days

  

Total Past 

Due

  

Current

Total 

Financing 

Receivables

Investment > 

90 Days and 

Accruing

Participant Loans 

Receivable $               - $              - $                - $             - $ 8,525,718 $ 8,525,718 $                -

Other Loans 

Receivable $               - $              - $                - $             - $    332,530 $    332,530 $                -

Affiliate Loans

Receivable $               - $              - $                 - $              - $    749,698 $    749,698 $                -

$               - $            - $                 - $              - $ 9,607,946 $ 9,607,946 $               -

There was no impairment of financing receivables as of June 30, 2013. 
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Note 10.  Notes Payable 

Notes payable consisted of the following at June 30, 2013: 

Amount
Note payable to Calvert Social Investment Foundation, interest payable semi-annually at 
4.5%; uncollateralized note; matures June 28, 2016. $ 1,000,000

Note payable to City of Turlock without interest.  One-twentieth of the principal is payable 
upon the sale of each lot, up to a maximum of twenty-four lots, collateralized by deed of trust. 140,000

Note Payable to the Congregation of the Sisters of Charity of the Incarnate Word, interest 
payable annually at 2%, matures November 8, 2015, uncollateralized. 200,000

Note payable to BBVA Compass Bank (EQ2), matures June 30, 2021.  Interest is accrued at 
2% per annum; interest payments due semi-annually; uncollateralized. 100,000 

Note payable to BBVA Compass Bank (EQ2), matures May 23, 2021.  Interest is accrued at 
2% per annum; interest payments due semi-annually; uncollateralized. 100,000

Note payable to Housing Assistance Council (“HAC”); interest payable at 5% on earlier of the 
date of sale of property that collateralizes the loan or November 30, 2015 (“RHLF” – 
Madera). 369,190

Note payable to Housing Assistance Council (“HAC”); matures December 31, 2013. No 
interest until December 31, 2013; thereafter, interest payable at HAC’s prevailing interest 
rates; up to 80% of the loan will be forgiven if the grant criteria are met.  Collateralized by 
second deed of trust (“SHOP 08” - Parksdale). 639,000

Note payable to Housing Assistance Council (“HAC”); matures December 31, 2013.  No 
interest until December 31, 2013; thereafter, interest payable at HAC’s prevailing interest 
rates.  The loan will be forgiven when the grant criteria are met (“SHOP 09 Rollover”). 553,500

Note payable to HAC; matures September 2015. No interest until October 2015; thereafter, 
interest payable at HAC’s prevailing interest rates. The loan will be forgiven when the grant 
criteria are met (“SHOP 2010 Rollover” – Reedley). 342,000
Subtotal 3,443,690
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Note 10.  Notes Payable (Continued) 

Subtotal from previous page 3,443,690

Note payable to HAC; matures December 2015. No interest until January 2016; thereafter, 
interest payable at HAC’s prevailing interest rates. The loan will be forgiven when the grant 
criteria are met (“SHOP 2011 – Goshen SF2”). 439,383

Note payable to Monarch Community Fund dated August 31, 2011; uncollateralized; matures 
August 31, 2014. Interest is accrued at 3.50%. 500,000

Note payable to Threshold Foundation; interest payable annually at 2%; uncollateralized note; 
matures December 12, 2015. 45,000

Note payable to the California Department of Housing and Community Development; matures 
August 11, 2014; interest accrues at 6%, forgivable under certain conditions.  Loan converts to 
grants for loans to be made to participant families in Gustine.  $393,103 was converted in
prior fiscal years. 1,106,897

Note payable to California Department of Housing and Community Development; matures 
May 27, 2014; interest accrues at 6%, forgivable under certain conditions.  Loan converts to 
grants for loans to be made to participant families in Corcoran. 240,000

Note payable to California Department of Housing and Community Development; matures 
January 2015; interest accrues at 6% forgivable under certain conditions. Loan converts to 
grants for loans to be made to participant families in Goshen. 180,000

Note Payable to Everence Community Investments dated September 20, 2011; matures 
September 20, 2014; interest accrues at 3.5% payable semiannually.  Note is uncollateralized. 250,000

Note payable to Wells Fargo Bank (EQ2) dated December 2002; non-interest bearing for the 
first five (5) years of the loan; 2% per annum for the remaining second five (5) years of the 
loan; all unpaid principal and interest due in full January 2014; uncollateralized. 500,000

Note payable to F.B. Heron Foundation matures June 30, 2017.  Interest is accrued at 4% per 
annum.  Scheduled principal payments are $250,000 due June 30, 2016 and $500,000 upon 
maturity. 750,000
Subtotal 7,454,970 
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Note 10.  Notes Payable (Continued) 

Subtotal from previous page 7,454,970

Note Payable to NeighborWorks-Salt Lake – AHMI; dated August 1, 2011; matures March 
15, 2016; interest is 5.25%; Secured by Deed of Trust (Patterson).  This loan was paid in full 
in October 2013. 1,000,000

Note payable to the Northern California Community Loan Fund; matures May 2015; interest 
accrues at 8.5%, but is subsidized by the NCCLF to a net 3.5% rate. The loan is to promote 
community development projects in the eight-county area served by the Organization. 
Maximum lending under this loan is $250,000.

23,000 

Mortgage payable to United States Department of Agriculture – Rural Development (“USDA-
RD”), collateralized by a first deed of trust on real property; monthly principal and interest 
installments of approximately $1,290 due, plus excess rent, if any.  The monthly payment is 
applied to outstanding principal and interest; the excess rent, if any, is applied to additional 
interest.  Interest is accrued at 1% per annum.  The entire mortgage matures in 2023 (Bear 
Creek). 166,098

Mortgage payable to United States Department of Agriculture – Rural Development (“USDA-
RD”), collateralized by a first deed of trust on real property; annual principal and interest 
installments of approximately $9,724 due beginning May 1, 2005.  Interest is accrued at 1% 
per annum.  The entire mortgage matures in 2036 (Bear Creek). 253,349

Mortgage payable to United States Department of Agriculture – Rural Development (“USDA-
RD”), collateralized by a first deed of trust on real property, monthly principal and interest 
installments of approximately $9,168 due.  Interest is accrued at 1%.  The loan matures in 
2039 (Bear Creek). 2,440,385

Mortgage payable to Department of Housing and Community Development (“HCD”); 
collateralized by deed of trust on real property; bearing no interest.  All payments deferred 
until the three related USDA-RD loans (see above) are paid in full.  Beginning the first of the 
month following the first anniversary of the repayment of the USDA-RD loans, the 
Organization shall make annual principal payments to HCD until paid in full (Bear Creek). 447,480
Subtotal 11,785,282
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Note 10.  Notes Payable (Continued) 

Subtotal from previous page 11,785,282

Mortgage payable to Department of Housing and Community Development (“HCD”);
collateralized by a first deed of trust on real property; bearing no interest.  All payments 
deferred until the USDA-RD loan (see above) is paid in full.  Beginning the first of the month 
following the first anniversary of the repayment of the USDA-RD loan, the Organization shall 
make annual principal payments to HCD in an amount not less than annual residual receipts 
(as defined in the loan agreement), until paid in full (Bear Creek). 2,000,000

Mortgages payable to United States Department of Agriculture – Rural Development 
(“USDA-RD”), collateralized by a first deed of trust on real property, combined monthly 
principal and interest installments of approximately $12,300 due, plus excess rent, if any.  The 
monthly payment is applied to outstanding principal and interest; the excess rent (if any) is 
applied to additional interest.  Interest is accrued at 1%.  The mortgages mature on February 1, 
2033 and January 1, 2025 (Casas de la Vina). 1,962,090

Note payable to Tulare County in the original amount of $653,428 dated June 30, 1994, 
collateralized by a deed of trust on real property, interest accruing at 7.27%, annual 
installments of $23,212, and matures on April 30, 2035.  The remaining principal of $275,210 
is deferred (Nueva Sierra Vista). 284,155

Note payable to Tulare County in the original amount of $653,428 dated June 30, 1994, 
collateralized  by a deed of trust on real property, interest accruing at 7.27%, principal and 
interest payments deferred until April 30, 2035 (Nueva Sierra Vista). 275,210

Note Payable to the State of California Rental Housing Construction Program ("RHCP") in 
the original amount of $1,207,464 on September 15, 1995.  The note is collateralized by the 
property, bears interest of 3% (simple) per annum, and is due and payable in fifty-five (55) 
years on April 29, 2050 (Nueva Sierra Vista). 1,063,472
Subtotal 17,370,209
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Note 10.  Notes Payable (Continued) 

Subtotal from previous page 17,370,209

Note Payable to the Bank of the Sierra in the original amount of $522,500 on December 7, 
2011.  The note is collateralized by the property, bears interest at 6.75% and matures on 
December 7,2026 (Solinas Village). 490,933

Note payable to the County of Kern (HOME) in the amount of $2,200,000 was assumed by 
the LLC on December 29,2011. The LLC also assumed interest payable in the amount of 
$1,082,817.  The note is collateralized by the property, bears interest at 3% (simple) and 
matures December 29, 2036 (Solinas Village). 2,200,000

Mortgage payable to United States Department of Agriculture – Rural Development (“USDA-
RD”), collateralized by a first deed of trust on real property, combined monthly principal and 
interest installments of approximately $7,998 due, plus excess rent, if any.  The monthly 
payment is applied to outstanding principal and interest; the excess rent (if any) is applied to 
additional interest.  Interest is accrued at 1%.  The mortgage matures in June 2028 (Vera 
Cruz). 1,304,174

Mortgage payable to the County of Tulare in the amount of $630,200, uncollateralized; no 
interest.  Monthly principal payments of approximately $2,600 are due beginning August 30, 
2031,  Note matures August 2051 (Vera Cruz). 630,200 

Miscellaneous notes payable represent notes payable to various individuals or entities.  
Interest rates and maturities vary. 28,500

22,024,016
Less current portion ( 1,390,921)

$ 20,633,095

Maturities of notes payable as of June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2014 $ 1,390,921
2015 2,425,326
2016 3,424,161
2017 1,125,904
2018 381,389
Thereafter 13,276,315

$ 22,024,016



SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

22

Note 10.  Notes Payable (Continued) 

A summary of the Organization's long-term debt as of June 30, 2013 is as follows: 

Lending Institution Purpose Maturity Date Interest Rate Balance

Calvert Social Investment Foundation Development June 2016 4.50% $ 1,000,000 

City of Turlock Development Upon sale 0.00%        140,000 

Congregation of Sisters of Charity of Incarnate Word Development November 2015 2.00%        200,000 

Compass Bank (EQ2) Development June 2021 2.00%        100,000 

Compass Bank (EQ2) Development May 2021 2.00%        100,000 

Housing Assistance Council Development November 2015 5.00%        369,190

Housing Assistance Council Development December 2013 0.00%        639,000

Housing Assistance Council Development December 2013 0.00%        553,500

Housing Assistance Council Development September 2015 0.00%        342,000

Housing Assistance Council Development December 2015 0.00%        439,383

Monarch Community Fund Development August 2014 3.50%        500,000 

Threshold Foundation Development December 2015 2.00%          45,000 

Cal. Dept. of Housing and Community Devel. Development August 2014 6.00% 1,106,897 

Cal. Dept. of Housing and Community Devel. Development May 2014 6.00%        240,000 

Cal. Dept. of Housing and Community Devel. Development January 2015 6.00%        180,000

Everence Community Investments Development Sept 2014 3.50%        250,000 

Wells Fargo Bank (EQ2) Development January 2014 2.00%        500,000 

FB Heron Foundation Development June 2017 4.00%        750,000 

NW AHMI Salt Lake Development March 2016 5.25% 1,000,000 

Northern California Community Loan Fund Development May 2015 3.50%          23,000

U.S. Department of Agriculture - R.D. Bear Creek 2023 1.00%        166,098 

U.S. Department of Agriculture - R.D. Bear Creek 2036 1.00%        253,349 

U.S. Department of Agriculture - R.D. Bear Creek 2039 1.00% 2,440,385 

Cal. Dept. of Housing and Community Devel. Bear Creek Upon repayment 0.00%        447,480 

Cal. Dept. of Housing and Community Devel. Bear Creek Upon repayment 0.00% 2,000,000 

U.S. Department of Agriculture - R.D. Casas de la Vina 2025 and 2033 1.00% 1,962,090 

Tulare County Nueva Sierra Vista April 2035 7.27%        284,155 

Tulare County Nueva Sierra Vista April 2035 7.27%        275,210 

Cal. Dept. of Housing and Community Devel. - RHCP Nueva Sierra Vista April 2050 3.00% 1,063,472 

Bank of the Sierra Solinas Village December 2026 6.75%        490,933 

County of Kern (HOME) Solinas Village December 2036 3.00% 2,200,000 

U.S. Department of Agriculture - R.D. Vera Cruz 2028 1.00% 1,304,174

County of Tulare Vera Cruz August 2051 0.00% 630,200 

Various Development Various 0.00%          28,500 

$ 22,024,016
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Note 10.  Notes Payable (Continued) 

Housing Assistance Council (“HAC”) Self-Help Housing Opportunity Program (“SHOP”) Loan Forgiveness:  
HAC will forgive up to 90% of each SHOP loan to the Organization if the loan funds are used for SHOP-eligible 
purposes and for SHOP-eligible homebuyers within allowable timelines. These forgiven amounts are generally 
deposited by the Organization in its revolving loan fund. For the year ended June 30, 2013  there were no 
amounts forgiven under this program.   

Note 11. Accrued Interest 

Accrued interest reported in the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position consisted of deferred 
interest for the following loans at June 30, 2013: 

Amount
County of Tulare (Nueva Sierra Vista) $ 182,560
County of Tulare (Nueva Sierra Vista) 365,303
State of CA Rental Housing Construction Program (Nueva Sierra Vista) 563,892
County of Kern – HOME (Solinas Village) 1,181,817

$ 2,293,572

The entire amount of unpaid interest becomes due and payable when the loan matures (See Note 10).

Note 12.  Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses reported in the accompanying consolidated statement of financial 
position consisted of the following at June 30, 2013: 

Amount
Accounts payable $ 789,846
Interest payable 37,221
Accrued payroll 173,604
Accrued compensated absences 245,046
Tenant deposits 167,858
IDA funds payable 84,921
Other accrued expenses 31,111

$ 1,529,607
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Note 13.  Functional Expenses 

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been summarized below on a functional basis.  
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.  Functional 
expenses reported in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities consisted of the following at June 30,
2013: 

Amount
Program Expenses $ 16,295,648
Fundraising Expenses 10,018
Supporting Services 1,168,113

$ 17,473,779

Note 14.  Retirement Plan 

The Organization sponsors a Discretionary Employer Defined Contribution Plan with 401(k) Salary Reduction 
Provisions (the “Plan”).  Under the Plan, the Board of Directors of the Organization determines, on an annual 
basis, the amount of contribution that will be made to the Plan on behalf of its employees.  The contribution for 
the year ended June 30, 2013 was 2% of salaries.  In addition, employees can elect to defer a portion of their 
salary and contribute it to the Plan.  The Organization matches up to 4% of salary of those employee salary 
deferrals contributed to the Plan.  All investments are self-directed by the employee through Minnesota Life.  
Salary deferrals by the employees were approximately $333,500 for the year ended June 30, 2013.  The 
Organization’s total contributions for the year ended June 30, 2013 was approximately $227,000. 

Note 15.  Commitments 

Operating Leases 

The Organization leases a postage meter, and several copiers under operating lease agreements that expire 
between March 2014 and October 2016.  Aggregate future minimum rentals are approximately $23,000 in 2014, 
2015, and 2016 and $7,200 in 2017. Lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2013 totaled approximately 
$28,500. 

Line of Credit 

The Organization has an operating line of credit with Wells Fargo Bank in the amount of $1,500,000 that bears 
interest at 4.5%.  The maturity date is June 22, 2014.  At June 30, 2013, there was no outstanding balance on this 
line of credit. 
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Note 16.  Indirect Cost Rate 

The Organization’s cognizant agency, the U.S. Department of Agriculture, contracts with the U.S. Department of 
Interior for negotiation of the Indirect Cost Rate, which is applied to grants, contracts, and other agreements with 
the Federal Government to which OMB Circular No. A-122 applies.  The provisional rate approved for the 2014 
fiscal year is 26.65%, and the final rate approved for the 2012 fiscal year was 26.49%. The actual rate applied for 
the fiscal year and reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements was 26.54%. Indirect costs 
reported in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities totaled $1,168,113 for year ended June 30, 
2013. 

Note 17.  Contingencies and Concentrations 

Federal Grants 

The Organization participates in a number of federal programs that are funded by grants received from various 
government funding agencies.  Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the appropriate grantor 
government.  Periodic audits may be performed by these granting agencies and certain costs may be questioned as 
not being reimbursable under the terms of the contract.  If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with 
grant program regulations, the Organization may be required to reimburse the grantor government.  At June 30, 
2013, significant amounts of grant expenditures have not been audited, but the Organization’s management 
believes that disallowed expenditures discovered in subsequent audits, if any, will not have a material effect on its 
overall financial position. 

Economic Dependency 

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through various federal programs and contracts with local and 
state agencies.  Unrestricted grants for the year ended June 30, 2013 comprise approximately 20% of total 
unrestricted revenue, respectively.  The following is a summary of the percentage of total grants received from 
each of the agencies for the year ended June 30, 2013: 

Funding Agency Amount Percentage
United States Department of Agriculture - Rural Development $ 1,754,266 53.09%
State of CA Department of Housing & Community Development - CalHome 708,600 21.44%
State of CA Department of Housing & Community Development - CSHHP 358,107 10.84%
United States Department of Labor 188,533 5.71%
United States Department of Urban Development – RHED 57,054 1.73%
All others 237,757 7.19%

$ 3,304,317 100.00%
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Note 17.  Contingencies and Concentrations (Continued) 

Credit Risk – Cash Balances and Investments 

The Organization maintains cash balances in several financial institutions, including Wells Fargo Bank, Citibank, 
and Valley Business Bank.  Effective January 1, 2013, non-interest bearing accounts are aggregated with interest-
bearing accounts and are insured up to $250,000. At June 30, 2013, there was approximately $11,650,000 in 
uninsured cash balances due to the changes in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) regulations.  

Additional funds in the amount of approximately $3,500,000 are held at Merrill Lynch in an Insured Savings 
Program through which investments are made at a series of banks in balances less than $250,000 each.  These 
funds are covered under FDIC insurance.  Additionally, the Organization maintains a cash balance of 
approximately $2,000,000 at Merrill Lynch, of which approximately $1,750,000 is uninsured under the FDIC 
regulations noted above. 

The Organization does not believe that it is subject to unusual credit risk beyond the normal credit risk associated 
with commercial banking relationships due to the credit-worthiness of the related financial institutions. 

Guarantees 

The Organization entered into an agreement with Viscaya Gardens Partners to construct a low-income housing 
project in Dinuba, California.  As part of the financing arrangement with Wells Fargo Bank, the bank requires that 
the Organization guarantee repayment of the outstanding loan balance.  The maximum amount of borrowing 
under the loan is $6,405,888. The amount owed on this loan at June 30, 2013 is $5,022,557.  The Organization 
would be required to repay any outstanding balance in the event of default by Viscaya Gardens Partners. 

The Organization has guaranteed results of operations as of June 30, 2013 as follows:

Operating Deficit Guaranty Operating Deficit Reserve
Viscaya Gardens, Dinuba $135,000 for 60 months –ends 

August 2018
$ 135,000 to be funded at end of 

construction
Parksdale Village, Madera As needed for 60 months –ends 

April 2015
$100,000 fully funded in 

Partnership account
Goshen Village II, Goshen 

Parksdale Village II, Madera 

$250,000 for 60 months –ends 
December 2016 

$150,000 for 48 months – ends 
December 2016

$  82,932 fully funded in 
Partnership account 

$140,004 fully funded in 
Partnership account
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Note 18.  Permanently Restricted Net Assets  

The Organization has a total of $3,791,825 in permanently restricted contributions from NeighborWorks America 
to be used in its “revolving loan fund” program and multifamily projects. The NeighborWorks America 
contributions are to be used for purposes that will build assets for the Organization and the communities in which 
the Organization operates.   

NeighborWorks America contributed an additional $340,000 of permanently restricted funds during the 2013 
fiscal year.   

As discussed in Note 21, NeighborWorks America released $914,239 of permanently restricted net assets from 
restriction in October 2013.

Note 19.  Temporarily Restricted Net Assets  

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2013: 

Amount
Goshen Park 
Scholarship Fund

$         505,734 
148,202

$ 653,936

Note 20.  Related Party Transactions 

The Organization conducts activities with four subsidiary corporations, two limited liability companies and a 
limited partnership which serve as the managing general partners for limited partnerships owning affordable rental 
housing properties.  They are Goshen Village II LLC; Parksdale Village II LLC; Self-Help Communities 1 LLC;  
Viscaya Gardens Partners LLC;  Solinas Village, Inc.; Almond Court, Inc.; SHE-CEF 1, Inc.; and Villa Santa 
Guadalupe Corporation.  Together, these entities hold ownership interest in twenty (20) rental housing properties. 
The Organization’s general partnership interest in SHE-CEF 1, Inc. and Villa Santa Guadalupe Corporation is 
0.01% and its interest is 1.0% in Solinas Village, Inc., and Almond Court, Inc. 
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Note 20.  Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

The following table discloses the related party transactions between the Organization and the multifamily housing 
properties as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013: 

Corporation/Multifamily Housing 
Property

Funds 
Loaned

Funds 
Repaid Note Balance

Development 
& 

Management 
Fees Received

Partnership Properties – General Partner
Goshen Village II LLC

Goshen Village II $                 - $               - $                 - $   33,571   

Solinas Village, Inc.
Gateway Village - - - 30,000

Almond Court, Inc.
Almond Court 199,584 - 199,584 39,997
Sunrise Villa - - - 32,848
Villa Hermosa - - - 25,943

SHE-CEF 1, Inc.
Biola Village - - - 40,576
Caliente Creek 250,114 - 250,114 29,308
Casitas Del Sol - - - 19,028
Cottonwood Creek - - - 29,552
Goshen Village - - - 19,500
Lincoln Plaza - - - 40,848
Rancho Lindo - - - 30,000
Rolling Hills 300,000 - 300,000 20,107
Sand Creek - - - 30,000
Villa Del Rey - - - 20,547
Washington Plaza - - - 24,000

Parksdale Village Partners, a CA LP
Parksdale Village - - - 46,500

Parksdale Village Partners II, LLC
Parksdale Village II 3,387,507 3,387,507 - 1,875

Villa Santa Guadalupe Corporation
Villa de Guadalupe - - - 19,904

   $ 4,137,205 $   3,387,507 $ 749,698  $   534,104
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Note 21.  Subsequent Events 

The date to which events occurring after June 30, 2013, the date of the most recent consolidated statement of 
financial position, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial statements or disclosure is 
November 20, 2013, which is the date on which the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 

Subsequent to June 30, 2013, the following occurred: 

In July, the limited partner of Almond Court multifamily tax credit project exited and was replaced by 
SHE-CEF1 as the limited partner. This project will be consolidated in the financial statements for the 
year ended June 30, 2014. 

In September the Organization entered into an agreement to sell the vacant office building in Madera 
California.  The sale is expected to close in December 2013. 

In September the Organization lent $2.5 million to Viscaya Gardens Partners to pay down Wells Fargo 
financing.  This amount will be returned to the Organization by February 2014. 

On October 18, 2013, the Organization repaid in full the loan from AHMI Salt Lake in the amount of 
$950,000 and accrued interest. A balance in the amount of $50,000 will remain as a shared reserve until 
released by AHMI. 

In October 2013 NeighborWorks America issued an Investment and Grant Funds Letter which released 
$914,128 of their contributions to the Organization from permanent restriction.   

The California Department of Housing (CalHome) loan for Gustine in the amount of $1,106,987 included 
in notes payable (see Note 10) was converted to a grant and will be treated as a refundable advance until 
future home builders purchase the lots covered under this program. 





SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2013

Self-Help
Enterprises

North Park 
Apartment Housing 

Corporation
Nueva Sierra 

Vista Corporation

Self-Help
Communities I, 

LLC

Subtotal
before

Eliminating
Entries

Eliminating
Entries Consolidated

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,231,540$            87,479$                  18,684$                54,781$                17,392,484$    -$                      17,392,484$            
Accounts receivable, net 1,469,044                3,011                      26                         986                       1,473,067        -                        1,473,067                
Grants receivable 601,447                   -                              -                           -                           601,447           -                        601,447                   
Notes receivable - current portion 5,778                       -                              -                           -                           5,778              -                        5,778                       
Prepaid expenses and inventory 104,351                   10,200                    27,833                  30,206                  172,590           -                        172,590                   
Construction-in-progress - current portion 2,783,633                -                              -                           -                           2,783,633        -                        2,783,633                
Total current assets 22,195,793              100,690                  46,543                  85,973                  22,428,999      -                        22,428,999              

Other Assets
Notes receivable - net of current portion 10,075,268              -                              -                           -                           10,075,268      (473,100)           9,602,168                
Investments in marketable securities 9,531                       -                              -                           -                           9,531              -                        9,531                       
Investments in affiliates, at cost 1,220,392                -                              -                           -                           1,220,392        -                        1,220,392                
Property held for resale 349,542                   -                              -                           -                           349,542           -                        349,542                   
Impound/reserve accounts 1,045,480                648,386                  218,227                144,955                2,057,048        -                        2,057,048                
Land held for development, net 12,740,382              -                              -                           -                           12,740,382      -                        12,740,382              
Total other assets 25,440,595              648,386                  218,227                144,955                26,452,163      (473,100)           25,979,063              

Plant, Property and Equipment, Net 11,035,486              2,450,772               1,831,786             2,716,012             18,034,056      -                        18,034,056              
Total assets 58,671,874$            3,199,848$             2,096,556$           2,946,940$           66,915,218$    (473,100)$          66,442,118$            

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Current portion of notes payable 1,368,006$              -$                            -$                         22,915$                1,390,921$      -$                      1,390,921$              
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,383,026                68,678                    38,525                  39,378                  1,529,607        -                        1,529,607                
Deferred income 1,099,250                -                              -                           -                           1,099,250        -                        1,099,250                
Total current liabilities 3,850,282                68,678                    38,525                  62,293                  4,019,778        -                        4,019,778                

Deferred Income - Net of Current Portion 7,799,087                -                              -                           -                           7,799,087        -                        7,799,087                
Accrued Interest -                              -                              1,111,755             1,181,817             2,293,572        -                        2,293,572                
Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 16,342,240              -                              1,822,337             2,941,618             21,106,195      (473,100)           20,633,095              
Total liabilities 27,991,609              68,678                    2,972,617             4,185,728             35,218,632      (473,100)           34,745,532              

Net Assets
Unrestricted:
   Board designated - Washburn funds 3,023,724                -                              -                           -                           3,023,724        -                        3,023,724                
   Unrestricted, undesignated 23,210,780              3,131,170               (876,061)               (1,238,788)            24,227,101      -                        24,227,101              
   Total unrestricted 26,234,504              3,131,170               (876,061)               (1,238,788)            27,250,825      -                        27,250,825              

Temporarily Restricted 653,936                   -                              -                           -                           653,936           -                        653,936                   
Permanently Restricted 3,791,825                -                              -                           -                           3,791,825        -                        3,791,825                
Total net assets 30,680,265              3,131,170               (876,061)               (1,238,788)            31,696,586      -                        31,696,586              

Total liabilities and net assets 58,671,874$ 3,199,848$ 2,096,556$ 2,946,940$           66,915,218$ (473,100)$ 66,442,118$

See Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information
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Self-Help
Enterprises

North Park
Apartment Housing 

Corporation
Nueva Sierra 

Vista Corporation

Self-Help
Communities I, 

LLC Consolidated
Revenues, Gains and Other Support
Grants 3,304,317$ -$ -$ -$ 3,304,317$
Contract income 3,228,074 - - - 3,228,074
Project management fees 90,576 - - - 90,576
Interest income 344,427 - 342 143 344,912
Land/development sales 5,840,770 - - - 5,840,770
Contributions 625,304 - - - 625,304
Other income 644,267 25,859 - 4,134 674,260
Rental income 1,573,408 660,141 201,353 347,018 2,781,920
  Net assets released from restriction - - - - -
Total revenues 15,651,143 686,000 201,695 351,295 16,890,133

Expenses
Salaries 4,102,870 98,851 45,706 66,564 4,313,991
Fringe benefits 1,533,735 17,587 3,813 5,553 1,560,688
Contract services 471,890 256,865 36,787 58,755 824,297
Cost of sales 5,793,764 - - - 5,793,764
Travel 250,414 - - - 250,414
Space 430,263 158,705 76,318 91,076 756,362
Supplies 71,379 32,190 - - 103,569
Equipment rent/lease/purchase 86,483 - - - 86,483
Telephone 52,712 - - - 52,712
Postage 30,663 - - - 30,663
Depreciation 578,180 147,585 79,958 109,765 915,488
Other 498,882 43,492 15,822 15,000 573,196
Deferred loans 708,600 - - - 708,600
HWWS loans 8,465 - - - 8,465
Re-Use loans 390,800 - - - 390,800
Insurance 229,587 33,879 9,660 15,782 288,908
Printing 4,283 - - - 4,283
Interest 262,588 - 72,570 100,427 435,585
Impairment loss on real estate - - - - -
Project costs 313,290 - - - 313,290
Reserve expenditures 62,221 - - - 62,221
Total expenses 15,881,069 789,154 340,634 462,922 17,473,779

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (229,926) (103,154) (138,939) (111,627) (583,646)
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 30,910,191 3,234,324 (737,122) (1,127,161) 32,280,232
Net Assets at End of Year 30,680,265$ 3,131,170$ (876,061)$ (1,238,788)$ 31,696,586$

SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Self-Help
Enterprises

North Park Apartment 
Housing Corporation

Nueva Sierra 
Vista Corporation

Self-Help
Communities I, 

LLC Consolidated
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Increase (decrease) in net assets (229,926)$ (103,154)$ (138,939)$ (111,627)$ (583,646)$
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
  to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 578,180 147,585 79,958 109,765 915,488
(Increase) decrease in operating assets 2,961,834 23,440 (11,573) (34,256) 2,939,445
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities 791,390 (33,447) 9,622 7,292 774,857

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 4,101,478 34,424 (60,932) (28,826) 4,046,144

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments for purchases of property and equipment (16,574) - (42) (1,470) (18,086)
Advances paid on notes receivable (4,403,756) - - - (4,403,756)
Redemptions of investments, net (685) - - - (685)
Payments received on notes receivable 5,198,005 - - - 5,198,005
Investments in affiliates (233,820) - - - (233,820)
Maturities of certificates of deposit 57,547 - - - 57,547

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 600,717 - (42) (1,470) 599,205

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings on long-term debt 1,744,910 - 69,570 66,000 1,880,480
Principal payments on long-term debt (4,052,157) - - (22,915) (4,075,072)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (2,307,247) - 69,570 43,085 (2,194,592)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,394,948 34,424 8,596 12,789 2,450,757

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 14,836,592 53,055 10,088 41,992 14,941,727
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 17,231,540$ 87,479$ 18,684$ 54,781$ 17,392,484$

Supplemental Cash Flows Disclosures
Cash payments during the year for: interest, net of
  capitalized interest of approximatly $167,300 -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - BY FUND GROUP

June 30, 2013

General
Multifamily
Properties Land Development Grant Funds

Subtotal before 
Eliminating Entries

Eliminating
Entries Total

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15,129,206$            277,092$                 1,247,610$             577,632$              17,231,540$             -$                 17,231,540$            
Accounts receivable, net 1,414,960                20,248                     33,836                    -                           1,469,044                -                   1,469,044                
Grants receivable 418                          18,304                     -                              582,725                601,447                   -                   601,447                   
Notes receivable - current portion 5,778                       -                              -                              -                           5,778                       -                   5,778                       
Prepaid expenses and inventory 80,039                     23,900                     -                              412                       104,351                   -                   104,351                   
Construction-in-progress - current portion 426,150                   -                              2,357,483               -                           2,783,633                -                   2,783,633                
Total current assets 17,056,551              339,544                   3,638,929               1,160,769             22,195,793               -                   22,195,793              

Other Assets
Notes receivable - net of current portion 19,032,437              -                              -                              -                           19,032,437               (8,957,169)    10,075,268              
Investments in marketable securities 9,531                       -                              -                              -                           9,531                       -                   9,531                       
Investments in affiliates, at cost 1,220,392                -                              -                              -                           1,220,392                -                   1,220,392                
Property held for sale 349,542                   -                              -                              -                           349,542                   -                   349,542                   
Impound/reserve accounts -                              1,045,480                -                              -                           1,045,480                -                   1,045,480                
Land held for development, net of allow. 61,402                     -                              12,678,980             -                           12,740,382               -                   12,740,382              
Total other assets 20,673,304              1,045,480                12,678,980             -                           34,397,764               (8,957,169)    25,440,595              

Plant, Property and Equipment, Net 1,351,617                9,683,869                -                              -                           11,035,486               -                   11,035,486              
Total assets 39,081,472$            11,068,893$            16,317,909$           1,160,769$           67,629,043$             (8,957,169)$  58,671,874$            

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Current portion of notes payable 28,500$                   344,506$                 995,000$                -$                         1,368,006$               -$                 1,368,006$              
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,180,424                103,707                   37,376                    61,519                  1,383,026                -                   1,383,026                
Deferred income - current portion -                              -                              -                              1,099,250             1,099,250                -                   1,099,250                
Total current liabilities 1,208,924                448,213                   1,032,376               1,160,769             3,850,282                -                   3,850,282                

Deferred Income - Net of Current Portion 7,799,087                -                              -                              -                           7,799,087                -                   7,799,087                
Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 3,577,014                8,859,272                12,863,123             -                           25,299,409               (8,957,169)    16,342,240              
Total liabilities 12,585,025              9,307,485                13,895,499             1,160,769             36,948,778               (8,957,169)    27,991,609              

Net Assets
Unrestricted:
   Board designated - Washburn funds 3,023,724                -                              -                              -                           3,023,724                -                   3,023,724                
   Unrestricted, undesignated 19,026,962              1,761,408                2,422,410               -                           23,210,780               -                   23,210,780              
   Total unrestricted 22,050,686              1,761,408                2,422,410               -                           26,234,504               -                   26,234,504              

Temporarily Restricted 653,936                   -                              -                              -                           653,936                   -                   653,936                   
Permanently Restricted 3,791,825                -                              -                              -                           3,791,825                -                   3,791,825                
Total net assets 26,496,447              1,761,408                2,422,410               -                           30,680,265               -                   30,680,265              
Total liabilities and net assets 39,081,472$            11,068,893$ 16,317,909$ 1,160,769$           67,629,043$ (8,957,169)$ 58,671,874$
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General
Multifamily
Properties Land Development Grant Funds Support Services

Temporarily
Restricted

Permanently
Restricted Total

Revenues, Gains and Other Support
Grants 19,500$                   -$                            -$                              3,284,817$              -$                           -$                           -$                           3,304,317$                
Contract income 3,228,074                -                              -                                -                               -                             -                             -                             3,228,074                  
Project management fees 90,576                      -                              -                                -                               -                             -                             -                             90,576                       
Interest income 88,609                      1,876                      253,494                    243                          -                             205                        -                             344,427                     
Land/development sales 3,298,020                -                              2,542,750                 -                               -                             -                             -                             5,840,770                  
Contributions 270,885                   -                              -                                -                               -                             14,419                   340,000                625,304                     
Earned loan forgiveness -                                -                              -                                -                               -                             -                             -                             -                                 
Other income 609,244                   16,782                    6,874                        -                               -                             11,367                   -                             644,267                     
Rental income 42,550                      1,530,858               -                                -                               -                             -                             -                             1,573,408                  
Assets released from restriction 181,250                   -                              -                                -                               -                             (181,250)               -                             -                                 
 Total revenues 7,828,708                1,549,516               2,803,118                 3,285,060                -                             (155,259)               340,000                15,651,143                

Expenses
Salaries 1,932,223                265,668                  -                                1,181,227                723,752                -                             -                             4,102,870                  
Fringe benefits 700,825                   45,306                    -                                530,454                   257,150                -                             -                             1,533,735                  
Contract services 157,562                   133,084                  -                                116,288                   64,956                   -                             -                             471,890                     
Cost of sales 3,119,343                -                              2,674,421                 -                               -                             -                             -                             5,793,764                  
Travel 110,531                   -                              86                             111,573                   28,224                   -                             -                             250,414                     
Space 50,061                      330,813                  -                                32,293                     17,096                   -                             -                             430,263                     
Supplies 27,560                      17,923                    -                                16,472                     9,424                     -                             -                             71,379                       
Equipment rent/lease/purchase 45,220                      8,852                      -                                25,195                     7,216                     -                             -                             86,483                       
Telephone 24,615                      3,945                      -                                16,571                     7,581                     -                             -                             52,712                       
Postage 16,276                      -                              -                                11,901                     2,486                     -                             -                             30,663                       
Depreciation 61,624                      472,932                  -                                28,456                     15,168                   -                             -                             578,180                     
Other 370,482                   65,787                    15,000                      30,020                     17,593                   -                             -                             498,882                     
Deferred loans -                                -                              -                                708,600                   -                             -                             -                             708,600                     
HWWS loans 8,465                        -                              -                                -                               -                             -                             -                             8,465                         
Re-Use loans 390,800                   -                              -                                -                               -                             -                             -                             390,800                     
Insurance 67,358                      70,394                    -                                74,488                     17,347                   -                             -                             229,587                     
Printing 3,816                        -                              -                                347                          120                        -                             -                             4,283                         
Interest 507                           61,297                    200,784                    -                               -                             -                             -                             262,588                     
Impairment loss on real estate -                                -                              -                                -                               -                             -                             -                             -                                 
Project costs 176,106                   -                              16,544                      120,640                   -                             -                             -                             313,290                     
Reserve expenditures -                                62,221                    -                                -                               -                             -                             -                             62,221                       
Transfer to (from) other funds 207,320                   -                              (31,717)                     (175,603)                 -                             -                             -                                 
Total direct expenses 7,470,694                1,538,222               2,875,118                 2,828,922                1,168,113             -                             -                             15,881,069                

Indirect expenses allocated 711,975                   -                              -                                456,138                   (1,168,113)            -                             -   -                             -                                 
Total expenses 8,182,669                1,538,222               2,875,118                 3,285,060                -                             -                             -                             15,881,069                

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (353,961)                  11,294                    (72,000)                     -                               -                             (155,259)               340,000                (229,926)                    
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 22,783,812              1,750,114               2,115,245                 -                               -                             809,195                3,451,825             30,910,191                
Net Assets at End of Year 22,429,851$            1,761,408$ 2,043,245$ -$ -$ 653,936$ 3,791,825$ 30,680,265$

SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - BY FUND GROUP

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Unrestricted
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Bear Creek 
Housing

Community
Casas de la 

Vina
Vera Cruz 

Village Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
   Cash and cash equivalents 111,975$           89,295$             75,822$          277,092$         
   Accounts receivable, net 159                    11,567               8,522              20,248             
   Grants receivable 18,304               -                    -                 18,304             
   Prepaid expenses and inventory 9,000                 9,700                 5,200              23,900             
         Total current assets 139,438             110,562             89,544            339,544           

Impound/Reserve Accounts 200,687             440,301             404,492          1,045,480        

Plant, Property and Equipment, Net 4,876,618          2,686,726          2,120,525       9,683,869        
          Total assets 5,216,743$ 3,237,589$ 2,614,561$ 11,068,893$

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
   Current portion of notes payable 108,849$           154,663$           80,994$          344,506$         
   Accounts payable and accrued expenses 26,733               45,802               31,172            103,707           
         Total current liabilities 135,582             200,465             112,166          448,213           

Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 5,198,463          1,807,427          1,853,382       8,859,272        
         Total liabilities 5,334,045          - 2,007,892          1,965,548       9,307,485        

Net Assets   
   Unrestricted net assets (117,302)           1,229,697          649,013          1,761,408        
         Total liabilities and net assets 5,216,743$ 3,237,589$ 2,614,561$ 11,068,893$

SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - MULTIFAMILY PROPERTIES

June 30, 2013
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Bear Creek 
Housing

Community Casas de la Vina
Vera Cruz 

Village Total

Revenues, Gains and Other Support
   Interest income 534$                   709$                  633$               1,876$               
   Other income 9,631                  4,847                 2,304              16,782               
   Rental income 610,552              504,151             416,155          1,530,858          
          Total revenues, gains and other support 620,717              509,707             -     419,092          1,549,516          

   
Expenses
   Salaries 94,947                106,669             64,052            265,668             
   Fringe benefits 14,341                18,990               11,975            45,306               
   Contract services 49,678                44,052               39,354            133,084             
   Space 140,728              82,533               107,552          330,813             
   Supplies 5,298                  8,672                 3,953              17,923               
   Equipment rent/lease/purchase 8,852                  -                         -                     8,852                 
   Telephone 1,444                  1,656                 845                 3,945                 
   Depreciation 197,393              112,206             163,333          472,932             
   Other 23,837                25,823               16,127            65,787               
   Insurance 23,762                29,081               17,551            70,394               
   Interest 27,601                20,182               13,514            61,297               
   Reserve expenses 2,001                  33,898               26,322            62,221               
          Total expenses 589,882              483,762             -     464,578          1,538,222          

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 30,835                25,945               (45,486)          11,294               
Net Assets at Beginning of Year (148,137)             1,203,752          694,499          1,750,114          
         Net assets at end of year (117,302)$ 1,229,697$ 649,013$ 1,761,408$ -             

SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - MULTIFAMILY PROPERTIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
As of and For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED FUNDS

GOSHEN LAND SCHOLARSHIP
PARK LAMONT FUND Total

ASSETS
Cash (220,208)$ -$ 37,184$            (183,024)$
Investments - - 2,268               2,268
Note receivable interfund - - 115,000           115,000
Construction in progress 426,150 - -                       426,150
Land 300,000 - -                       300,000

Total Assets 505,942$ -$ 154,452$          660,394$

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 208$ -$ -$                      208$
Scholarships Payable - - 6,250               6,250

Total Liabilities 208 - 6,250               6,458

NET ASSETS
Net Assets - Temporarily Restricted 505,734 - 148,202           653,936

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 505,942$ -$ 154,452$          660,394$

Revenues, Gains and Other Support
Contributions 3,742$ -$ 10,677$            14,419$
Interest Income 205 - -                       205
Other Income 11,367 - -                       11,367
Net Assets Released from Restriction -                      (175,000) (6,250)              (181,250)

   Increase/(decrease) in net assets 15,314 (175,000) 4,427               (155,259)

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 490,420            175,000          143,775            809,195            
Net Assets at the End of the Year 505,734$ -$ 148,202$          653,936$

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES
PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
As of and For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED FUNDS
NW NW

CAPITAL CFRAH
GRANT FUND Total

ASSETS
Note Receivable Interfund 3,791,825$ -$                           3,791,825$

Total Assets 3,791,825$ -$                           3,791,825$

NET ASSETS
Net Assets - Permanently Restricted 3,791,825$ -$                           3,791,825$

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 3,791,825$ -$                           3,791,825$

Revenue
Contributions 340,000$ -$                           340,000$
Interfund transfer 404,729 (404,729) -

        Increase/(decrease) in net assets 744,729 (404,729) 340,000

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 3,047,096 404,729 3,451,825
Net Assets at the End of the Year 3,791,825$ -$                           3,791,825$

See Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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SELF HELP ENTERPRISES
SCHEDULE OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

City 6/30/2012 Additions Cost of Sales
Transfers/Adjustm

ents 6/30/2013 Sales Cost of Sales Gain/(Loss)
Land Development
Arvin -$                       37,260$             -$                    -$                    37,260$               -$                    -$                       -$                 
Bakersfield 3,477,831 84,946 - - 3,562,777 - - -                   
Clovis 1,043,081 - (31,716) (1,011,365) - 31,716 (31,716) -                   
Corcoran 175,181 18,124 - - 193,305 - - -                   
Dinuba Lincoln-McKinley - 314,984 (314,984) - - 330,000 (314,984) 15,016
Dinuba MF 554,160 - (541,250) (12,910) - 541,250 (541,250) -                   
Dos  Palos 3,861,518 64,225 - 3,925,743 - - -                   
Goshen CM2 172,064 7,231 - (16,493) 162,802 - - -                   
Goshen CM3 171,985 7,735 - (16,493) 163,227 - - -                   
Goshen SF2 859,036 588,638 - - 1,447,674 - - -                   
Gustine 1,983,032 40,393 - - 2,023,425 - - -                   
Lamont 895,930 7,659 (586,089) (317,500) - 577,500 (586,089) (8,589)
LeGrand 285,766 6,660 - - 292,426 - - -                   
Mendota 83,368 - - - 83,368 - - -                   
Parksdale 1 1,181,122 - (307,941) (633) 872,548 306,000 (307,941) (1,941)
Parksdale 2 1,276,714 121,241 - - 1,397,955 - - -                   
Parksdale 3 1,086,331 116,656 - - 1,202,987 - - -                   
Patterson 1,768,219 73,711 - - 1,841,930 - - -                   
Planada SF 866,347 57,944 - - 924,291 - - -                   
Reedley 549,128 168,319 (717,447) - - 788,000 (717,447) 70,553
Tulare 579,323 18,711 - - 598,034 - - -                   
Turlock 1,698,429 38,643 - - 1,737,072 - - -                   
Visalia MF - 50,290 - - 50,290 - - -                   
Wasco MF 25,041 297 - (25,338) - - - -                   

22,593,606 1,823,667 (2,499,427) (1,400,732) 20,517,114 2,574,466 (2,499,427) 75,039
Allowance for real
    estate impairment loss (5,621,300) - 142,500 - (5,478,800) - - -                   

16,972,306$          1,823,667$        (2,356,927)$       (1,400,732)$       15,038,314$       2,574,466$         (2,499,427)$         75,039$          

Construction In Progress
New Homes Construction
Bakersfield 696$                       20$                    -$                    -$                    716$                     -$                    -$                       -$                 
Clovis 07 570,232 351,996 (1,617,615) 695,387 - 1,737,000 (1,617,615) 119,385
Clovis 08 287,431 501,766 (1,136,891) 347,694 - 1,192,000 (1,136,891) 55,109
Tulare 3,739 135 - - 3,874 - - -                   
Turlock 9,912 294 - - 10,206 - - -                   
Garrett House in Fresno - 168,530 (168,530) - - 139,020 (168,530) (29,510)

872,010$               1,022,741$        (2,923,036)$       1,043,081$        14,796$              3,068,020$         (2,923,036)$         144,984$        

Multi-Family Housing
Viscaya Gardens 219,826$               1,559,554$        -$                    (1,779,380)$        -$                     -$                    -$                       -$                 
Lindsay 409 70,524 - (70,933) - - - -                   
Parksdale 2 55 - - (55) - - - -                   
Visalia - 46,605 - - 46,605 - - -                   
Wasco 6,719 4,469 - (11,188) - - - -                   

227,009$               1,681,152$        -$                   (1,861,556)$       46,605$              -$                    -$                      -$                

Property Held for Resale
Acq Rehab-Lindsay -$                       102,088$           (102,088)$           -$                    -$                     115,000$            (102,088)$             12,912$           
Acq Rehab-Armona - 94,213 (94,213) - - 115,000 (94,213) 20,787

Goshen Park 300,000 124,300 - - 424,300 - - -

18,371,325$          4,848,161$        (5,476,264)$       (2,219,206)$       15,524,015$       5,872,486$         (5,618,764)$         253,722$        

Note:  Included in the Lamont adjustment is a $175,000 donation from Wells Fargo Bank used to reduce project costs making the project available to low income families.  The Lamont project
adjustment also includes $142,500 of real estate impairment utilized in this fiscal year.

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY SALES ACTIVITY

See Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information 40



Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Fund No.
Federal 
CFDA # Grant or Contract #

Total Costs 
Expended/ 

Outstanding 
Balance

Grants - Costs Expended
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Programs:

HUD Rural Housing and Economic Development RHED09 14.250 RH-09-CA-I-0223 $ 57,054

Pass Through Programs:
NeighborWorks America

HUD National Forclosure Mitigation and Counseling NFMCRNDII 21.000 52,161
HUD National Forclosure Mitigation and Counseling NFMCRNDVI 21.000 101,515

153,676

National Council of La Raza
HUD Homeownership Counseling Program HCE NCLR 13 14.169 25,429

Local Initiatives Support Corporation
HUD Section 4 LISC 12 14.218 41215-0031 17,147
HUD Section 4 LISC 13 14.218 41215-0032 17,500

34,647

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 270,806

U.S. Department of Labor
Direct Programs:

Seasonal Farmworker Grant DOL 12 17.264 MH-2200-3JWO 188,533

Total U.S. Department of Labor 188,533

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Direct Programs:

Rural Housing Preservation Grant HPG10 10.433 HPG 533 FY 2010 21,154
Rural Housing Preservation Grant HPG11 10.433 HPG 533 FY 2011 105,671
Rural Housing Preservation Grant HPG12 10.433 HPG 533 FY 2012 253
Rural Self-Help Technical Assistance RD523TA10 10.420 523 TA 10 1,627,431
Rural Community Development Initiative RCDI09 10.672 FY2009 RCKI 86,140

1,840,649

Pass Through Programs:
Rural Community Assistance Corporation

Department of Community Services and Development RCACCSD12 93.569 CSD11-SO12/12 14,732
Department of Community Services and Development RCACCSD13 93.569 CSD11-SO13/13 4,446
Water and Waste Water Disposal Systems for Rural Communities RCACTECH12 10.148 TECH-S011-12 1,546
Water and Waste Water Disposal Systems for Rural Communities RCACTECH13 10.148 TECH-S011-13 4,887

 25,611

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 1,866,260

U.S. Environmenal Protection Agency 
Pass Through Programs:

State of California Department of Public Health
Water and Waste Water Disposal Systems for Rural Communities CDPH 11 66.468 11-10089 349,776

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 349,776

Loan Programs - Outstanding Balances
U.S. Department of Agriculture Multifamily Projects 10.415 Projects 7,446,821

$ 10,122,196

See Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Note 1 – Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Federal awards received directly from federal 
agencies as well as federal awards passed through other government agencies are included in the schedule. 

Note 2 – Loans Outstanding 

Self-Help Enterprises had the following outstanding loan balances at June 30, 2013.  The loan programs are also 
included in the federal expenditures presented in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

Grantor/Federal Agency  Federal CFDA Number  Amount 
Federal 
U.S. Department of Agriculture  10.415  $7,446,821 

Note 3 – Relationship to Federal Financial Reports 

Information included in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is in substantial 
agreement with the information reported in the related financial reports for major programs.
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SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2013

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X No

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 510(a) of Circular A-133? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency CFDA No. 66.468

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as "low-risk auditee"? X Yes No

Unqualified

Unqualified

$300,000

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS
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SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2013

TYPES OF FINDINGS:

There were no reportable findings related to financial statement reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
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SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2013

TYPES OF FINDINGS:

There were no reportable findings related to financial statement reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS & QUESTIONED COSTS
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SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2013

There were no reportable audit findings in the prior fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS



Pass-Through Grantor/State Grantor/Program Title Fund Grant or Contract #

Total Costs 
Expended/

Outstanding
Balance

Grants - Costs Expended
State of California Department of Housing and Community Development
Direct Programs:

CalHome Housing Technical Assistance Allocation Program CSHHPCLO08 09-CHSSP-6516 $ 84,068          
CalHome Housing Technical Assistance Allocation Program CSHHPTUL14 10-CSHHP-7129 43                 
CalHome Housing Technical Assistance Allocation Program CSHHPGOSH 10-CSHHP-7140 74,790          
CalHome Housing Technical Assistance Allocation Program CSHHPPKS 10-CSHHP-7141 43,959          
CalHome Housing Technical Assistance Allocation Program CSHHPLAM 10-CSHHP-0169 19,780          
CalHome Housing Technical Assistance Allocation Program CSHHPREEPE 10-CSHHP-7149 138,953        

Total State of California Department of Housing and Community Development 361,593        

State of California Department of Water Resources
Direct Programs:

Water and Waste Water Disposal Systems for Rural Communities CDPH11 11-10089 349,776        
Total State of California Department of Water Resources 349,776        

Loan Programs - Outstanding Balances
HCD - CAL HOME 10-CALHOME-6630  1,500,000     
HCD - CAL HOME Bear Creek 11-CALHOME-8078 180,000        
HCD - CAL HOME 11-CALHOME-8201 375,000        
HCD - Joe Serna Jr Farmworker Housing Program 08-FWHG- 4487 1,220,900     
HCD - HOME (PKS Vil. II ) Bear Creek 10-HOME-6342 4,170,921     

Total Loan Programs - Outstanding Balances 7,446,821     

$ 8,158,190     

SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

See Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information  52
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October 30, 2014

Mr. Tim Little 
The Rose Foundation
1970 Broadway, Suite 600 
Oakland, CA 94612

RE: Self-Help Enterprises Proposal for Funding: IRWM DAC Coordinator  

Dear Mr. Little: 
I am pleased to be able to provide this letter in support of the proposal by Self-Help Enterprises (SHE) 
for funding through the Rose Foundation’s Central Valley Disadvantaged Community Water Quality 
Grants Program.   

The Community Water Center (CWC) acts as a catalyst for community-driven water solutions through 
organizing, education and advocacy. We seek to build and enhance leadership capacity and local 
community power around water issues, create a regional movement for water justice in the San Joaquin 
Valley, and enable every community to have access to safe, clean and affordable drinking water. 
Through that work, we collaborate closely with other key organizations that support development of 
disadvantaged community (DAC) water solutions. Self Help Enterprises is one of our primary partners 
in communities, particularly in the southern San Joaquin Valley. Our two organizations have worked 
together since our inception to support drinking water solutions in communities that lack that basic 
human right. 

Two recent DAC studies, the Tulare Lake Basin DAC Pilot Study and the Kings Basin DAC Pilot 
Project Study recommend the creation of a DAC Coordinator for each IRWM that is focused on 
supporting DAC engagement and project development within Integrated Regional Water Management 
(IRWM) groups. SHE’s project will provide exactly that role. 

This IRWM DAC Coordinator will meet a critical need for engagement and support of DACs within 
IRWM regions (beginning with the Upper Kings Basin) to be able to adequately participate in those 
planning and project development processes to ensure their needs are met. Self-Help Enterprises, with 
its many decades of providing technical assistance to many of the 100 communities in the IRWM 
region, is an ideal organization to host such a position. 



●  Tel. 
●

2

This project complements the role of CWC by focusing entirely on the IRWM process and venue, as 
opposed to CWC’s broader focus on regional drinking water project development and regional 
groundwater management planning and projects. Each IRWM group has its own very specific 
structures, requirements, funding guidelines, and dynamics that require a full-time coordinator just to 
support those efforts within each IRWM. SHE’s proposal provides the opportunity to pilot that role by 
providing those services in the Upper Kings Basin.   

We strongly support full funding of this vital project for DACs in the region.  

If you would like to discuss SHE’s proposal further, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Laurel Firestone 
Co-Executive Director & Attorney at Law 
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BANK OF THE SIERRA DONATES
TO DROUGHT RELIEF EFFORTS

FAMILIES WORK TOGETHER TO
BUILD THEIR HOMES

SHE IS HIRING

PRESERVING AFFORDABLE
RENTAL HOUSING

WATER-SAVING INITIATIVE

Self-Help Enterprises In The News

Bank of the Sierra Makes $50,000
Drought Relief Donation

Historic Grant Helps Drought
Project Hold Water

Porterville Man Gets Hooked Up To
Water

Local Business Donates $50,000
for Drought Relief

The Bank of America Charitable Foundation, an important partner of Self-Help
Enterprises, presented a donation of $24,000 to SHE. The donation will
support our homeownership counseling and education program, which
prepares prospective homebuyers to become responsible and sustainable
homeowners through comprehensive in-person and online classes. 
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SHE IS HIRING
Self-Help Enterprises offers an exciting
work environment where you can bring
your high caliber skills to a true career
opportunity and impact the world around
you.

We have an opening for a Manager for
New Homes Construction, responsible
for all onsite construction activities,
estimating, purchasing, planning, and
permitting for the self-help housing
program at Self-Help Enterprises. Learn
more here.

PRESERVING
AFFORDABLE RENTAL
HOUSING
Self-Help Enterprises recently completed
rehabilitating the 35 unit Nueva Sierra
Vista apartment rental community in
Richgrove.

Improving the energy efficiency and
routine maintenance of existing rental
housing is essential to preserving
affordable rental housing. At Nueva Sierra
Vista, we: 

Replaced roofs with energy
efficient roofing material and
enhanced insulation

BANK OF THE SIERRA DONATES
$50,000 TO DROUGHT RELIEF
EFFORTS
Thousands of residents across the Central Valley have survived
months without water to drink, cook, clean, shower or run a swamp
cooler during the sweltering summer.

In a special effort to assist local families affected by California's
water crisis, Bank of the Sierra presented the largest Sierra Grant
donation in the bank's history to Self-Help Enterprises in the
amount of $50,000.      
     
The donation will assist Self-Help Enterprises to provide
immediate, interim assistance to residents and communities
affected by the drought, while working toward long-term solutions.
These activities include:

providing low-interest loans to drill new or deepen existing
private wells; 
securing emergency funding for delivery of bottled drinking
water;
securing funding to drill deeper wells for rural community
water systems;
securing funding to connect drought stricken areas to
nearby community water systems; and
installing a water storage tank and small pump that
connects water to a home's indoor plumbing.

We are very grateful to Bank of the Sierra for this generous
donation. As a community and with the support of local
businesses, we can come together to help Valley residents in our
own backyard who are facing extreme water challenges and are in
desperate need of emergency relief during this persistent drought.
If you would like to join in support of local families in need, please
visit our donation page.
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Replaced all windows and HVAC
systems to high energy efficient
standards
Repainted the exterior
Replaced all handicap ramps and
handrails
Re-sealed and re-striped the
asphalt parking lot

In addition, all the handicap accessible
apartments were upgraded with new
kitchen and bathroom cabinets, counters,
appliances, and flooring. The layout of the
bathroom in some units was also changed
to create more space and efficiency.

By creating affordable, high-quality
housing, Self-Help Enterprises helps
stabilize local communities and provides a
safe and healthy environment for
residents to thrive.

WATER-SAVING
INITIATIVE
Home Depot donated conservation kits

Top: Paul Boyer, SHE Community Development Program Director, demonstrates
the interim storage tank solution.

Bottom: Bank of the Sierra presents $50,000 to SHE. Pictured from left to right are
Self Help Enterprises - Tom Collishaw, CEO; Paul Boyer, Community Development
Program Director; Bank of the Sierra - Kevin McPhaill, President & Chief Banking
Officer; Art Zschau, SVP, Area Manager Exeter/Farmersville Region; Matthew
Hessler, SVP, Director of Marketing.

FAMILIES WORK TOGETHER TO
BUILD THEIR HOMES 
Participants in Self-Help Enterprises' new homes program have
started to build their own single-family homes in Tulare. With
skilled onsite supervision from Self-Help Enterprises' construction
staff, the 10 families will work together on the construction of their
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rural community water systems in Kern,
Tulare, Fresno, Kings and Stanislaus
counties.  
Disadvantaged communities in the San
Joaquin Valley may contact us at (559)
802-1682 to be added to a list for a future
distribution of water conservation kits.

Visit this link to view more photos from
the kickoff event in Porterville. For more
information about water conservation, visit
Save Our Water.

Sustainable Planning from the
California Partnership for the
San Joaquin Valley. This award
recognizes our work over the
last 50 years in housing and
community development and our
continued commitment to
working with low-income families
to build
and sustain healthy homes and
communities.

Copyright © 2014, Self Help Enterprises
8445 W. Elowin Court, Visalia, CA 93291

All Rights Reserved.
559.651.1000

STAY CONNECTED
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put the Yuba River into the state’s wild and scenic river system, 

addressing the plenary audience at TSF’s Community Mining Summit, the firs

right with some of the students working on TSF’s project 



Nevada Alliance’s Sierra Nevada AmeriCorps Partnership.  For 2014

include “pre project” photos where 

with one as a “pre project” activity, the other “post project” ac

m evaluation consultant to develop a “scope of evaluation” for the 
project at the outset of the activities.  Evaluation of the project’s impact will be conducted in the third 







Fund’s Proposal “Building an Integrated Regional Water 
Management Program serving the Cosumnes, American, Bear and Yuba Rivers”

I am writing to urge your support for The Sierra Fund’s proposal “Building an Integrated 

Rivers.”  I have reviewed a draft of this proposal and support its objectives and activities.
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South Yuba River Citizens League Jul '13 - Jun 14

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4000 · Unrestricted Contributions

4010 · Individual Contributions 38,022.01

4020 · Corporate/Business Contribution 1,380.30

4030 · Legacies & Bequests 200,000.00

4040 · Emerald Circle Contrib $1200+ 140,312.00

4060 · Membership Dues 42,697.76

Total 4000 · Unrestricted Contributions 422,412.07

4200 · Rev from Non-government grants

4210 · Corporate Business Grants 72,250.00

4220 · Foundation/Trust Grants 63,140.16

4230 · Non Profit organization Grants 53,915.00

Total 4200 · Rev from Non-government grants 189,305.16

4400 · Revenue from indirect contribut

4410 · United Way & other contribution 849.62

Total 4400 · Revenue from indirect contribut 849.62

5000 · Government Grants

5010 · Agency Grants 19,201.13

5020 · Federal Grants 37,906.42

5030 · State Grants 13,075.18

5040 · Local Gov't Grants 4,800.00

Total 5000 · Government Grants 74,982.73

5100 · Revenue-program-sales & fees

5110 · Program Service Fees 146,424.80

5120 · Sponsorship of Events 81,795.00

5100 · Revenue-program-sales & fees - Other 0.00

Total 5100 · Revenue-program-sales & fees 228,219.80

5300 · Revenue from investments

5310 · Interest-savings short-term inv 3.40

5320 · Dividends & interest securities 0.00

Total 5300 · Revenue from investments 3.40

5400 · Revenue from other sources

5410 · Sales of merchandise 5,499.18

5420 · Concessions- bar and food 5,088.24

Total 5400 · Revenue from other sources 10,587.42

5800 · Special Events

5810 · Special Events-Revenue 20,647.11

5820 · Auction 28,429.78

5830 · Ticket Sales 129,792.67

5840 · Other Special Events Revenue 0.00

Total 5800 · Special Events 178,869.56

5900 · Other Income

5910 · Other Restricted Income 70,485.00



5920 · Other Unrestricted Income 8.00

5930 · Rental Income 0.00

Total 5900 · Other Income 70,493.00

Total Income 1,175,722.76

Cost of Goods Sold

6000 · Cost of Goods Sold

6010 · Books/Cards/Merch 3,351.32

6020 · Film Maker Royalties 21,940.00

6030 · Other COGS 28,162.53

Total 6000 · Cost of Goods Sold 53,453.85

Total COGS 53,453.85

Gross Profit 1,122,268.91

Expense

7000 · Grants,Contracts & Direct Assis

7010 · Grants to other Organizations 45,667.00

Total 7000 · Grants,Contracts & Direct Assis 45,667.00

7100 · Salaries & Wages

7110 · Regular Salary & Wages 407,147.34

7120 · Paid Time Off (PTO) 20,532.03

Total 7100 · Salaries & Wages 427,679.37

7150 · Payroll Taxes & Benefits

7160 · Employee Health Ins. 20,070.37

7170 · Payroll Taxes 38,711.11

7180 · Worker's Comp 5,031.76

Total 7150 · Payroll Taxes & Benefits 63,813.24

7200 · Contract Service Expenses

7210 · Accounting Fees 31,000.00

7220 · Americorp 29,100.00

7230 · Fundraising Fees 28,433.25

7240 · Legal fees (external) 5,280.00

7250 · Payroll Processing Fees 4,060.68

7260 · Professional Fees Other 0.00

7270 · Temporary Help-Contract 4,735.00

Total 7200 · Contract Service Expenses 102,608.93

7300 · Program Expenses

7310 · Advertising & Marketing 14,746.05

7330 · Catering/food not for resale 20,542.48

7340 · Conference Expenses 1,480.46

7350 · Equipment <500 597.12

7360 · Equipment Rental/Repair 15,495.64

7370 · Facility Rental - Program 11,816.21

7380 · Gifts/Awards/Scholarship 4,675.89

7390 · Honorarium/Speaker Fees 5,661.22

7400 · Lab Fees 790.88

7410 · Donor Benefit Expense 1,078.56

7420 · Merchant & Credit Card Fees 7,780.36



7430 · Office Supplies 8,237.27

7440 · Permits 1,343.51

7450 · Postage & Shipping 11,469.78

7460 · Printing/Copying 27,685.34

7470 · Repair & Maintenance 473.73

7490 · Subcontractor Fees-Projects 113,944.32

7500 · Supplies (program specific) 10,577.12

7510 · Telephone & Communications 6,369.70

7520 · Web Hosting & development 5,161.04

Total 7300 · Program Expenses 269,926.68

7600 · Rent & Facility Expenses

7620 · Building Maintenance 5,633.80

7630 · Facility Rent & Occupancy 31,250.00

7640 · Utilities (total)

7,220.16

90.99

0.00

Total 7640 · Utilities (total) 7,311.15

7680 · Facility Other 9,580.25

Total 7600 · Rent & Facility Expenses 53,775.20

7700 · Travel Expenses

7710 · Lodging 1,117.73

7720 · Meals 2,980.73

7730 · Mileage (local travel) 1,912.92

7740 · Mileage Reimb (Fed Rate) 6,808.05

7750 · Parking, Bridge Tolls 305.75

7760 · Transportation 1,847.97

7770 · Travel Expenses-Other 0.00

Total 7700 · Travel Expenses 14,973.15

8000 · Other Admin Expenses

8010 · Bank service charges 281.45

8015 · Board Expenses 0.00

8020 · Business Use Tax 130.54

8030 · Computer/Technology Services 6,716.09

8040 · Depreciation Expense 6,873.24

8050 · Dues & Subscriptions 1,568.21

8060 · Interest line of credit & loans 1,724.68

8070 · Insurance-Auto 0.00

8080 · Insurance- D&O 2,067.88

8090 · Liability Insurance (NIA) 2,598.83

8100 · Insurance Volunteer 877.42

8110 · Recruitment 1,134.00

8120 · Staff Professional Development 287.12

8130 · Taxes, Licenses & Fees 173.00

Total 8000 · Other Admin Expenses 24,432.46

Total Expense 1,002,876.03



Net Ordinary Income 119,392.88

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

9000 · Laura Wilcox Info

9010 · Laura Wilcox Income 7,851.92

9020 · Laura Wilcox Expenses -3,720.44

9030 · Laura Wilcox Scholarship -3,000.00

Total 9000 · Laura Wilcox Info 1,131.48

Total Other Income 1,131.48

Other Expense

7900 · Change in Investment Value 42.82

8200 · Theft 0.00

9999 · Unknown 309.19

Total Other Expense 352.01

Net Other Income 779.47

Net Income 120,172.35
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Income Statement

January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Earned revenues, Government 195,321$
Earned revenues, Foundation 285,523
Earned Revenue, Corporation 45,686
Special Event, Net 31,969
General Donations 260,495
Interest 105
In-Kind 110,000

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 929,099$   

EXPENSES
Wages & Salaries 465,928$
Fringe Benefit 84,262
Insurance - Liability 7,936
Office Expenses 8,809
Office supplies 24,161
Postage & Delivery 3,872
Printing 27,818
Professional Services 96,206
Rent & Utility 39,577
Telephone 13,683
Travel 39,565
Depreciation 3,909
IN - Kind 110,000

TOTAL EXPENSES 925,726$   

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 3,373$      
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MODESTO CITY SCHOOLS
Intervention Programs
426 Locust Street, Modesto, California 95351-2699
(209) 569-2800  •  (209) 575-7304 Fax  

Tim Little
Executive Director
The Rose Foundation for Communities and the Environment
1970 Broadway, Suite 600
Oakland, CA 94612

October 27, 2014

Dear Mr. Little,

Please accept this letter expressing my support for the Tuolumne River Trust’s Stanislaus County Water Stewardship 
Campaign and proposal for funding from the Central Valley Disadvantaged Communities Water Quality grant program. 
As an employee of Modesto City Schools, specifically with Intervention Programs and serving families in west Modesto, I 
am committed to partnering with TRT on this very important program.

West Modesto’s residents suffer from a variety of socioeconomic disadvantages. Water literacy is low as families focus 
on basic needs and safety, and the Tuolumne River that flows through our backyard is sadly used as a dumping ground for 
trash and other hazardous debris. At the same time, during many months of the year residents use the river as a place to 
cool off from the hot summer sun. 

The Tuolumne River Trust has partnered with our community to both improve river stewardship and address the concerns 
of our residents. Over the past 3 years, TRT has worked in partnership with other local non-profits to bring programming 
to west Modesto youth and their families that provides healthy alternatives to a sedentary lifestyle and risky behaviors. 
They have held numerous river and river park volunteer cleanups and are providing river rafting and canoeing experiences 
– the first introduction to river recreation and stewardship for many youth.

As part of this new water stewardship campaign, Modesto City Schools is committed to partnering with Tuolumne River 
Trust by educating our students on the importance of water conservation and the importance of the different habitats the 
Tuolumne River offers to the environment.  

Thank you for considering funding to bring improved water quality to our community.

Sincerely,

Jerry Carreño
After School Program Site Coordinator 
Modesto City Schools
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C o m m u n i t y W a t e r C e n t e r
Main office: 311W. Murray Ave. Visalia, CA 93291 ● Tel. (559) 733-0219 Fax (559) 

733-8219
Sacramento Office: 909 12th Street, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95814 ● Tel. (916) 706-3346 Fax 

(916) 706-2731
www.communitywatercenter.org

October 14, 2014

RE: Letter of Support for WildPlaces’

Dear Tim,

On behalf of Community Water Center, I support WildPlaces’ Disadvantaged Communities 
Watershed Quality Improvement Proposal. This proposal is strategic from an overall 
standpoint because it takes a holistic approach to water, considering the entire watershed 
(including groundwater) and its natural systems as a way to create long-term, community and 
watershed-wide solutions that lead the most impacted local communities to engagement, 
empowerment, and being part of the solution.

Our organization feels that its programs’ effectiveness and approach make it a valuable 
change agent to enhance progress in finding and implementing solutions to address the 
current water crisis in East Porterville. WildPlaces’ pollution prevention and education will 
be vital in an area where water quality is poor and public education on local surface and 
groundwater quality issues are important to connect with a watershed approach.

Please feel to reach me at (559) 733-0219

Best regards,

Susana De Anda


